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Madison Bancorp, Inc.

Dear Fellow Stockholders:

We are pleased to provide you with an update on Madison Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly
owned subsidiary, Madison Square Federal Savings Bank. This is our first Annual
Report to Stockholders of Madison Bancorp, Inc. for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2011. The accompanying financial statements provide meaningful information about
our operations.

Over the past several years our country has experienced challenging economic and
financial conditions. Economic recovery has been uneven at best with high
unemployment and the housing sector continues to stagnate. Historically low interest
rates continue to squeeze profit margins at many community financial institutions. While
we are not satisfied with our operating results, Madison Bancorp was able to increase
its net interest margin during this time and was able to significantly reduce the losses
that have been recorded in the previous years.

The net loss for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 was $57,000 or ($.10) per basic
and diluted share as compared to a net loss of $855,000 for the year ended March 31,
2010 and $1,718,000 for the year ended March 31, 2009.Total assets increased to
$154.0 million at March 31, 2011 from $146.0 million at March 31, 2010. Total deposits
increased to $139.5 million at March 31, 2011 from $137.0 million at March 31, 2010.

For the most recently completed quarter ended June 30, 2011 the Company reported a
loss of $39,000 or ($.07) per basic and diluted share. Total assets and total deposits
remained virtually unchanged from March 31, 2011. We have seen some decrease in
our net interest margin during the quarter as profitable loan and investment
opportunities have been limited.

During this challenging year, the Company successfully completed an Initial Public
Offering (IPO) which closed on October 6, 2010. A total of 608,116 shares of common
stock were sold in the IPO resulting in gross offering proceeds of approximately $6.1
million. Total stockholders’ equity at March 31, 2011 was $13.6 million or $22.43 per
share as compared to $9.1 million at March 31, 2010.

We believe we are well positioned from a capital and liquidity standpoint to effectively
manage during this demanding economic period and will be prepared to take advantage
of opportunities when economic conditions improve. We remain focused on asset
quality and although we have experienced some increase in delinquencies, our asset
quality is significantly better than our peers. That said, in these difficult times we
continue to be proactive and set aside reserves for potential future loan losses.



The confidence you have placed in us is appreciated and we will continue working hard
to make Madison Square the best bank possible and to enhance your investment in the
Company.

Also enclosed is proxy information regarding our annual meeting which is to be held
November 14, 2011. This meeting provides a great opportunity to gain more insight
about our operations and to meet the management and Board of Directors of the Bank.
Thank you for your support and confidence.

Sincerely,
Michael P. Gavin David F. Wallace

President & CEO Executive Chairman
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements, which can be identified by the use
of words such as “believes”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “estimates” or similar expressions. Forward-looking
statements include: statements of our goals, intentions and expectations; statements regarding our business plans,
prospects, growth and operating strategies, statements regarding the quality of our loan and investment portfolios;
and estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits. These forward-looking statements are subject to significant
risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking
statements due to, among others, the following factors: general economic conditions, either nationally or in our
primary market area, that are worse than expected; a continued decline in real estate values, changes in the interest
rate environment that reduce our interest margins or reduce the fair value of financial instruments, increased
competitive pressures among financial services companies; changes in consumer spending, borrowing and savings
habits; legislative, regulatory or supervisory changes that adversely affect our business, adverse changes in the
securities markets; and changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the bank regulatory
agencies, the Financial Accounting Standards Board or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board. Any of
the forward-looking statements that we make in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other public statements we
make may later prove incorrect because of inaccurate assumptions, the factors illustrated above or other factors
that we cannot foresee. Consequently, no forward-looking statement can be guaranteed.

PART1

Item 1. Business
General

Madison Bancorp, Inc. Madison Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in May 2010 to be the
holding company for Madison Square Federal Savings Bank (the “Bank™) following the Bank’s conversion from the
mutual to the stock form of ownership. On October 6, 2010, the mutual to stock conversion was completed and the
Bank became the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Also on that date, the Company sold and issued
608,116 shares of its common stock at a price of $10.00 per share, through which the Company received net offering
proceeds of $5,340,068. The Company’s principal business activity is the ownership of the outstanding shares of
common stock of the Bank. The Company does not own or lease any property, but instead uses the premises,
equipment and other property of the Bank, with the payment of appropriate rental fees, as required by applicable
laws and regulations, under the terms of an expense allocation agreement entered into with the Bank.

Madison Square Federal Savings Bank. Founded in 1870, Madison Square Federal Savings Bank is a
community-oriented financial institution, dedicated to serving the financial service needs of customers and
businesses within its market area, which consists of Baltimore and Harford Counties and northeast Baltimore City in
Maryland. We offer a variety of deposit products and provide loans secured by real estate located in our market
area. Our real estate loans consist primarily of residential mortgage loans, as well as commercial real estate loans,
land loans, home equity lines of credit and residential construction loans. We also offer commercial business loans
and, to a limited extent, consumer loans. We currently operate out of our corporate headquarters in the Perry Hall
area of Baltimore County and full service branch offices located in Perry Hall, Fallston, Bel Air and Baltimore City,
Maryland. We are subject to extensive regulation, examination and supervision by the Office of Thrift Supervision,
our primary federal regulator, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, our deposit insurer. At March 31,
2011, we had total assets of $154.0 million, total deposits of $139.5 million and total shareholders’ equity of $13.6
million.

The Bank’s and the Company’s executive offices are located at 8615 Ridgley’s Choice Drive, Suite 111,
Baltimore, Maryland 21236 and its telephone number is (410) 529-7400.

Available Information

‘The Company and Bank maintain an Internet website at http://www.madisonsquarefsb.com. The Company
makes available its Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K,
and amendments to such reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as well as other-
information related to the Company, free of charge. SEC reports are available on this site as soon as reasonably




practicable after electronically filed. The internet website and the information contained therein or connected
thereto are not intended to be incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Market Area

We are headquartered in Baltimore, Maryland. We consider the northeast Maryland corridor along I-95 to
the Delaware line to be our primary market area, consisting of Baltimore and Harford Counties and Baltimore City,
Maryland, and the surrounding areas. The economy of our market area is a diverse cross section of employment
sectors, with a mix of services, manufacturing, wholesale/retail trade, federal and local government, health care
facilities and finance related employment. This diversification helped to mitigate the impact of the economic
recession experienced over the last two years, as Maryland’s seasonally adjusted unemployment rate rose from 7.1%
at December 31, 2009 to 7.5% at December 31, 2010, which remained well below the national seasonally adjusted
unemployment rate which rose from 9.3% at December 31, 2009 to 9.6% at December 31, 2010 (Source: United
States Department of Labor — Bureau of Labor Statistics). Select employers in Baltimore County include the U.S.
Social Security Administration, T. Rowe Price Group, McCormick & Company and Lockheed Martin, while
Aberdeen Proving Grounds (“APG”) is a major employer both in the military and civilian capacity in Harford
County. Going forward, Harford County and the entire Baltimore metropolitan area will benefit from final
congressional approval of the Base Realignment or Closure Commission’s (“BRAC”) decision to shift an additional
8,000 U.S. Department of Defense jobs to APG according to the Maryland Department of Planning BRAC report
issued in December 2006.

Demographic and economic growth trends provide key insight into the health of our market area. The
following table sets forth information regarding the distribution of our loans and deposits and demographic
information for the counties in our market area, including Baltimore City, and the State of Maryland. The
demographic information is based on published statistics of the US Census Bureau.

Baltimore Baltimore Harford
City County County Maryland
Loans by County (in millions) (1)........ $10.0 $31.9 $32.1 $86.3
Deposits by County (in millions) (1) ... 26.1 57.6 48.0 $135.7
Unemployment rate (2) .......cccoeeeecnennn. 10.9% 8.0% 7.5% 7.5%
Median household income (3).............. $ 38,458 $ 64,629 $ 75,364 $ 69,193
Population growth (decline) (4) ........... 3.0)% 4.7% 10.9% 7.6%

(1) AtMarch 31, 2011

(2) December 2010

(3) For 2009

(4) From April 2000 to July 2009

If the population of Baltimore City continues to decline, it could negatively affect our deposit and loan
volumes. However, we maintain only a single branch in Baltimore City, and Baltimore City accounted for only
18.7% of our total deposits and 11.1% of our total loans. As a result, we expect the adverse effect on our loan and
deposit volumes of any future population declines in Baltimore City to be limited.

Lending Activities

General. The largest segment of our loan portfolio is real estate mortgage loans, consisting of residential
mortgage loans, and, to a lesser extent, commercial real estate loans, land loans, home equity lines of credit and
residential construction loans. We also offer commercial business loans and, to a limited extent, consumer loans.
We originate loans primarily for investment purposes, and currently do not sell residential mortgage loans into the
secondary market. Occasionally, we sell participation interests in certain loans that exceed our regulatory limit on
loans to one borrower. We also occasionally purchase loan participations.

We intend to continue to emphasize residential lending, while also seeking to expand our commercial real
estate and commercial business lending activities with a focus on serving small businesses and emphasizing
relationship banking in our primary market area. We do not offer, and have not offered, sub-prime loans, no-
documentation mortgage loans or Alt-A mortgage loans.



The following is a description of the loans we offer and our lending policies. On occasion, as described
below, we may choose to originate a loan that does not conform in every particular way with our loan policies.
However, such exceptions are rare and immaterial. Any exceptions to our loan policies must be approved by the
individuals or committee having authority to approve a comparable loan that conformed fully with our lending
policies. For information regarding loan approval procedures and authority, see “— Loan Underwriting — Loan
Approval Procedures and Authority.”

1-4 Single Family. At March 31, 2011, we had $57.6 million in 1-4 single family loans, which represented
66.4% of our total loan portfolio. Our origination of 1-4 single family mortgage loans enables borrowers to
purchase or refinance existing homes located in our primary market area.

Our 1-4 single family lending policies and procedures generally conform to secondary market guidelines.
We offer a mix of adjustable rate mortgage loans and fixed-rate mortgage loans with terms of up to 30 years.
Borrower demand for adjustable-rate loans compared to fixed-rate loans is a function of the level of interest rates,
the expectations of changes in the level of interest rates, and the difference between the interest rates and loan fees
offered for fixed-rate mortgage loans as compared to an initially discounted interest rate and loan fees for multi-year
adjustable-rate mortgages. The relative amount of fixed-rate mortgage loans and adjustable-rate mortgage loans that
can be originated at any time is largely determined by the demand for each in a competitive environment. We
determine the loan fees, interest rates and other provisions of mortgage loans based on our own pricing criteria and
competitive market conditions.

While 1-4 single family real estate loans are normally originated with 15- or 30-year terms, such loans
typically remain outstanding for substantially shorter periods because borrowers often prepay their loans in full
either upon sale of the property pledged as security or upon refinancing the original loan. Therefore, average loan
maturity is a function of, among other factors, the level of purchase and sale activity in the real estate market,
prevailing interest rates and the interest rates payable on outstanding loans on a regular basis. We do not offer 1-4
single family residential mortgage loans with negative amortization, and we have made a very limited number of
interest only 1-4 single family mortgage loans in cases where the borrower had unusually favorable income or
collateral characteristics.

Interest rates and payments on our adjustable-rate 1-4 single family mortgage loans adjust for periods
ranging from every month to up to 10 years, with most adjusting every one, three or five years after an initial fixed
period that, in most cases, is one, three or five years. Interest rates and payments on our adjustable-rate loans are
indexed to the corresponding U.S. Treasury Bill rate, except that loans that adjust monthly are indexed to the prime
rate.

We do not make owner occupied 1-4 single family real estate loans with loan-to-value ratios exceeding
80%, except when there are exceptional income or credit characteristics on the loan. Loans with loan-to-value ratios
in excess of 80% require private mortgage insurance, and if there is no private mortgage insurance, the interest rate
and points we charge for the loan may be increased by the cost of private mortgage insurance premiums. In
addition, under current lending guidelines, non-owner occupied 1-4 single family real estate loan-to-value ratios
generally may not exceed 75%. We require all properties securing mortgage loans to be appraised by a board-
approved independent appraiser. We also require title insurance on all first mortgage loans. Borrowers must obtain
hazard insurance, and flood insurance is required for all loans located in flood hazard areas. We do not make loans
generally known as subprime loans or Alt A loans.

Included in 1-4 single family mortgage loans are second mortgage loans. Second mortgage loans are made
at fixed rates for terms of up to 20 years. We do not offer second mortgage loans with loan-to-value ratios
exceeding 80%, including any first mortgage loan balance, except when there are exceptional income or credit
characteristics on the loan. Second mortgage loans totaled $6.2 million at March 31, 2011 and represented 10.7% of
residential mortgage loans at such date.

Mulfifamily Loans. We occasionally originate multifamily loans for apartment buildings and mobile home
parks. At March 31, 2011, multifamily loans totaled $1.7 million, which represented 1.9% of our total loan portfolio.
At March 31, 2011, our largest multifamily real estate loan had an outstanding balance of $2.0 million, of which we
held $1.2 million after our sale of a participation interest in this loan. This loan, which was originated in August
2008 and is secured by mobile home parks, was performing in accordance with its original terms at March 31, 2011.



Commercial Real Estate Loans. We offer fixed- and adjustable-rate mortgage loans secured by
commercial real estate. At March 31, 2011, commercial real estate loans totaled $12.2 million, or 14.0% of our total
loan portfolio. Our commercial real estate loans typically are secured by small to moderately sized office and retail
properties located in our primary market area and the surrounding areas.

We originate fixed-rate commercial real estate loans, generally with repricing at terms of from one month
to seven years, with most being from three to five years, and initial payments based on an amortization schedule of
up to 25 years. Interest rates vary and are based on market factors and negotiation with the borrower. We also offer
adjustable-rate commercial real estate loans, with terms of up to 25 years and with interest rates based on the
corresponding U.S. Treasury bill rate plus a negotiated margin. Loans are secured by first mortgages, generally are
originated with a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 75% and may require specified debt service coverage ratios
depending on the characteristics of the project. Rates and other terms on such loans depend on our assessment of
credit risk after considering such factors as the borrower’s financial condition and credit history, loan-to-value ratio,
debt service coverage ratio, and other factors. Many of our commercial real estate loans provide for an interest rate
floor.

Included in commercial real estate loans are construction loans for commercial properties, such as retail
properties and office units, although we had no commercial real estate construction loans at March 31, 2011 or 2010.
Commercial real estate construction loans are for a term of up to 18 months, with monthly interest only payments.
During the construction period, interest rates on these loans are tied to the prime rate as published in The Wall Street
Journal plus a negotiated margin, and can vary depending on the construction period. We require a maximum loan-
to-value ratio of 80% for all construction loans, except where there are exceptional credit circumstances on the loan.
We disburse funds on a percentage-of-completion basis following an inspection by a third party inspector or
qualified bank personnel.

At March 31, 2011, our largest commercial real estate loan had an outstanding balance of $1.8 million, of
which we held $737,000 after our sale of a participation interest in this loan. This loan, which was originated in July
2008 and is secured by a two story office building, was performing in accordance with its original terms at March
31,2011. :

Land Loans. We originate loans to individuals and developers for the purpose of developing vacant land
in our primary market area, typically for building an individual’s future residence or, in the case of a developer,
residential subdivisions or commercial property. At March 31, 2011, land loans totaled $5.6 million, which
represented 6.4% of our total loan portfolio. Land loans, which are offered for terms of up to five years, are indexed
to the prime rate as reported in The Wall Street Journal or a U.S. Treasury bill rate plus a negotiated margin. We
limit the loan-to-value ratio to a maximum of 75%, except where there are exceptional credit circumstances on the
loan. At March 31, 2011, our largest land loan had an outstanding balance of $1.6 million, of which we held
$870,000 after our sale of a participation interest in this loan. This loan was performing in accordance with its
original terms at March 31, 2011.

Home Equity Lines of Credit. We offer home equity lines of credit, which include adjustable-rate loans
with terms up to 20 years. We do not originate home equity loans with loan-to-value ratios exceeding 80%,
including any first mortgage loan balance, except where there are exceptional income or credit characteristics on the
loan. At March 31, 2011, home equity lines of credit totaled $1.8 million, or 2.0% of our total loan portfolio.

Residential Construction Loans. We originate construction loans for one- to four-family homes. At
March 31, 2011, residential construction loans totaled $2.2 million, which represented 2.5% of our total loan
portfolio. Construction loans are for terms of up to 18 months, with monthly interest only payments. Except for
speculative loans, discussed below, residential construction loans are only made to homeowners or to builders of
presold homes and the repayment of such loans comes from the proceeds of a permanent mortgage loan for which a
commitment is typically in place when the construction loan is originated. Occasionally, we also originate
construction loans to builders where the homes have been presold to buyers at the time of the loan. Interest rates on
these loans are tied to the prime rate as published in The Wall Street Journal plus a negotiated margin, and can vary
as to term, depending on the construction period. We require a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 80% for all
construction loans, except where there are exceptional income or credit characteristics on the loan. We disburse
funds on a percentage-of-completion basis following an inspection by a third party inspector or qualified bank
personnel.



While we also originate speculative construction loans to builders who have not identified a buyer for the
completed property at the time of origination (known as “speculative” construction loans), we generally limit this
type of lending to a group of well-established builders in our primary market area and limit the number of projects
with each builder. At March 31, 2011, we had approved commitments for speculative construction loans of $1.7
million, of which $1.7 million was outstanding. We require a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 75% for speculative
construction loans, except where there are exceptional credit circumstances on the loan.

At March 31, 2011, our non-speculative construction loans had total commitments of $2.4 million, of
which $637,000 was outstanding, and with the sale of a participation interest, we had $507,000 of the outstanding
balance. These relationships were performing according to their original terms at March 31, 2011.

Commercial Business Loans. We typically offer commercial business loans to small businesses located in
our primary market area. At March 31, 2011, commercial business loans totaled $5.0 million, which represented
5.7% of our total loan portfolio. Our commercial business loan portfolio consists primarily of loans that are secured
by equipment or other business assets, but also includes a smaller amount of unsecured loans for purposes of
financing expansion or providing working capital for general business purposes. Commercial business loans are
floating-rate loans indexed to the prime rate as published in The Wall Street Journal or a U.S. Treasury bill rate plus
a negotiated margin, and fixed-rate loans for terms of up to seven years with payments based on full amortization.
We also offer commercial lines of credit, which are adjustable-rate loans indexed to the prime rate plus a margin,
and are reviewed annually to determine whether to approve an extension. Key loan terms vary depending on the
collateral, the borrower’s financial condition and credit history, debt service coverage ratio and other relevant
factors.

Consumer Loans. We offer consumer loans as an accommodation to our customers and do not emphasize
this type of lending. We have made a variety of consumer loans, including automobile and motorcycle loans, boat
loans, commercial vehicle loans and overdraft lines of credit, but our portfolio primarily consists of automobile
loans. At March 31, 2011, consumer loans totaled $829,000, or 1.0% of our total loan portfolio. Consumer loans
are fixed-rate loans with terms of up to 10 years The procedures for underwriting consumer loans include an
assessment of the applicant’s payment history on other debts and ability to meet existing obligations and payments
on the proposed loan.

Loan Underwriting

Adjustable-Rate Loans. While we anticipate that adjustable-rate loans will better offset the adverse effects
of an increase in interest rates as compared to fixed-rate mortgages, an increased monthly mortgage payment
required of adjustable-rate loan borrowers in a rising interest rate environment could cause an increase in
delinquencies and defaults. The marketability of the underlying property also may be adversely affected in a high
interest rate environment. In addition, although adjustable-rate mortgage loans make our asset base more responsive
to changes in interest rates, the extent of this interest sensitivity is limited by the annual and lifetime interest rate
adjustment limits.

Nonowner -Occupied Residential Real Estate Loans. Loans secured by investment properties represent a
unique credit risk to us and, as a result, we adhere to special underwriting guidelines. Of primary concern in non-
owner occupied real estate lending is the consistency of rental income of the property. Payments on loans secured
by rental properties often depend on the maintenance of the property and the payment of rent by its tenants.
Payments on loans secured by rental properties often depend on successful operation and management of the
properties. As a result, repayment of such loans may be subject to adverse conditions in the reil estate market or the
economy. To monitor cash flows on rental properties, we require borrowers and loan guarantors, if any, to provide
annual financial statements and we consider and review a rental income cash flow analysis of the borrower and
consider the net operating income of the property, the borrower’s expertise, credit history and profitability, and the
value of the underlying property. We generally require collateral on these loans to be a first mortgage along with an
assignment of rents and leases, although we might accept a second mortgage where the combined loan-to-value ratio
is low.

Commercial Real Estate Loans. Loans secured by commercial real estate generally have larger balances

and involve a greater degree of risk than residential mortgage loans. Of primary concern in commercial real estate
lending is the borrower’s creditworthiness and the feasibility and cash flow potential of the project. Payments on
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loans secured by income properties often depend on successful operation and management of the properties. As a
result, repayment of such loans may be subject to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy. We
apply what we believe to be conservative underwriting standards when originating commercial loans and seek to
limit our exposure to lending concentrations to related borrowers, types of business and geographies, as well as
seeking to participate with other banks in both buying and selling larger loans of this nature. Management has hired
experienced lending officers and credit management personnel over the past several years in order to safely increase
this type of lending. To monitor cash flows on income properties, we require borrowers and loan guarantors, if any,
to provide annual financial statements on commercial real estate loans. In reaching a decision on whether to make a
commercial real estate loan, we consider and review a global cash flow analysis of the borrower and consider the net
operating income of the property, the borrower’s expertise, credit history and profitability, and the value of the
underlying property. An environmental survey or environmental risk insurance is obtained when the possibility
exists that hazardous materials may have existed on the site, or the site may have been impacted by adjoining
properties that handled hazardous materials.

Construction and Land Loans. Construction financing is generally considered to involve a higher degree
of risk of loss than long-term financing on improved, occupied real estate. Risk of loss on a construction loan
depends largely upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the property’s value at completion of construction and
the estimated cost of construction. During the construction phase, a number of factors could result in delays and
cost overruns. If the estimate of construction costs proves to be inaccurate, we may be required to advance funds
beyond the amount originally committed to permit completion of the building. If the estimate of value proves to be
inaccurate, we may be confronted, at or before the maturity of the loan, with a building having a value which is
insufficient to assure full repayment if liquidation is required. If we are forced to foreclose on a building before or
at completion due to a default, we may be unable to recover all of the unpaid balance of, and accrued interest on, the
loan as well as related foreclosure and holding costs. In addition, speculative construction loans, which are loans
made to home builders who, at the time of loan origination, have not yet secured an end buyer for the home under
construction, typically carry higher risks than those associated with traditional construction loans. These increased
risks arise because of the risk that there will be inadequate demand to ensure the sale of the property within an
acceptable time. As a result, in addition to the risks associated with traditional construction loans, speculative
construction loans carry the added risk that the builder will have to pay the property taxes and other carrying costs of
the property until an end buyer is found. Land and land development loans have substantially similar risks to
speculative construction loans. To monitor cash flows on construction properties, we require borrowers and loan
guarantors, if any, to provide annual financial statements and, in reaching a decision on whether to make a
construction or land loan, we consider and review a global cash flow analysis of the borrower and consider the
borrower’s expertise, credit history and profitability. We also disburse funds on a percentage-of-completion basis
following an inspection by a third party inspector or qualified bank personnel.

Commercial Business Loans. Unlike residential mortgage loans, which generally are made on the basis of
the borrower’s ability to make repayment from his or her employment income or other income, and which are
secured by real property whose value tends to be more easily ascertainable, commercial business loans are of higher
risk and typically are made on the basis of the borrower’s ability to make repayment from the cash flow of the
borrower’s business. As a result, the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial business loans may
depend substantially on the success of the business itself. Further, any collateral securing such loans may depreciate
over time, may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in value.

Consumer Loans and Home Equity Lines of Credit. Consumer loans may entail greater risk than do
residential mortgage loans, particularly in the case of consumer loans that are secured by assets that depreciate
rapidly, such as motor vehicles. In such cases, repossessed collateral for a defaulted consurher loan may not provide
an adequate source of repayment for the outstanding loan and a small remaining deficiency Gften does not warrant
further substantial collection efforts against the borrower. In the case of home equity loans, real estate values may
be reduced to a level that is insufficient to cover the outstanding loan balance after accounting for the first mortgage
loan balance. Consumer loan collections depend on the borrower’s continuing financial stability, and therefore are
likely to be adversely affected by various factors, including job loss, divorce, illness or personal bankruptcy.
Furthermore, the application of various federal and state laws, including federal and state bankruptcy and insolvency
laws, may limit the amount that can be recovered on such loans.

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. Our lending activities follow written, non-discriminatory
underwriting standards and loan origination procedures established by our board of directors and management.
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Certain of our employees have been granted individual lending limits, which vary depending on the type of loan and
whether the loan is secured or unsecured. All Joan requests exceeding the individual officer lending limits are
approved as follows: (i) by two loan officers, up to $25,000 for secured consumer loans, up to $150,000 for
residential mortgage loans, up to $100,000 for secured commercial loans and up to $250,000 for secured
construction loans; and (ii) by the Loan Committee, up to $75,000 for secured consumer loans, $350,000 for secured
commercial loans and $500,000 for residential and secured construction loans. Our Loan Committee consists of our
President, and Chief Executive Officer, Michael P. Gavin, Executive Vice President, Commercial Lending, Ronald
E. Ballard, Executive Vice President, Lending, Melody P. Kline, and Executive Chairman, David F. Wallace. All
loans exceeding the lending authority of the Loan Committee require approval by the Board Loan Committee, which
consists of the Loan Committee and two outside directors.

Loans to One Borrower. The maximum amount that we may lend to one borrower and the borrower’s
related entities is limited, by regulation, to 15% of our unimpaired capital and surplus. At March 31, 2011, our
regulatory limit on loans-to-one-borrower was $1.9 million. At March 31, 2011, our largest lending relationship
was $1.6 million and was performing according to its original terms at that date This loan relationship is secured
primarily by an owner occupied commercial real estate property.

Loan Commitments. We issue commitments for residential and commercial mortgage loans conditioned
upon the occurrence of certain events. Commitments to originate mortgage loans are legally binding agreements to
lend to our customers. Most of our loan commitments expire after 60 days. See note 9 to the notes to audited
consolidated financial statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Investment Activities

We have legal authority to invest in various types of liquid assets, including U.S. Treasury obligations,
securities of various government-sponsored agencies and of state and municipal governments, mortgage-backed
securities and certificates of deposit of federally insured institutions. Within certain regulatory limits, we also may
invest a portion of our assets in other permissible securities. As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta, we also are required to maintain an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta stock.
Notwithstanding this legal authority, our investment policy limits our authority to invest in mortgage-backed
securities exclusively to mortgage-backed securities issued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae.

At March 31, 2011, our investment portfolio consisted primarily of U.S. government agency securities,
mortgage-backed securities including collateralized mortgage obligations, and brokered certificates of deposit.
While our investment securities are generally available-for-sale, during the year ended March 31, 2009, we accepted
a redemption in-kind of our investment in the AMF Ultra Short Mortgage mutual fund, pursuant to which we
received agency and non-agency mortgage-backed securities classified as held-to-maturity. In the third quarter,
management decided to review the held-to-maturity portfolio to determine if it would be appropriate to transfer
these assets to AFS so that Madison could take advantage of improving market conditions and dispose of some of
these assets when market conditions were appropriate. At December 31, 2010, the entire held-to-maturity portfolio
was reclassified to available-for-sale. We do not currently invest in trading account securities. Further, we currently
intend to limit future investments in mortgage-backed securities to agency securities guaranteed by the U.S.
government or any agency thereof, and we currently do not intend to purchase mortgage-backed securities where the
underlying loans are subprime loans, interest only loans, option adjustable rate loans, Alt A loans or other similar
mortgage loans that have higher risk characteristics. At March 31, 2011, we also maintained an investment, at cost,
in Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta common stock.

Our primary investment objectives are: (i) to provide and maintain liquidity within the guidelines of the
Office of Thrift Supervision’s regulations, (ii) to fully employ the available funds of the Bank; (iii) to earn an
average rate of return on invested funds competitive with comparable institutions; (iv) to manage interest rate risk;
and (v) to limit risk. Our board of directors has the overall responsibility for the investment portfolio, including
approval of the investment policy. Our Investment Committee, which is appointed by the President and Chief
Executive Officer, consists of the President and Chief Executive Officer, and three directors, including two outside
directors. The Investment Committee is responsible for implementation of the investment policy and monitoring our
investment performance. Our board of directors reviews the status of our investment portfolio on a quarterly basis,
or more frequently if warranted.



Deposit Activities and Other Sources of Funds

General. Deposits, borrowings and loan repayments are the major sources of our funds for lending and
other investment purposes. Scheduled loan repayments are a relatively stable source of funds, while deposit inflows
and outflows and loan prepayments are significantly influenced by general interest rates and money market
conditions.

Deposit Accounts. Deposits are attracted from within our primary market area through the offering of a
broad selection of deposit instruments, including noninterest-bearing demand deposits (such as checking accounts),
interest-bearing demand accounts (such as NOW and money market accounts), regular savings accounts and
certificates of deposit. Deposit account terms vary according to the minimum balance required, the time periods the
funds must remain on deposit and the interest rate, among other factors. In determining the terms of our deposit
accounts, we consider the rates offered by our competition, our liquidity needs, profitability to us, matching deposit
and loan products and customer preferences and concerns. We generally review our deposit mix and pricing
weekly. Our deposit pricing strategy has typically been to offer competitive rates on all types of deposit products,
and to periodically offer special rates in order to attract deposits of a specific type or term.

Borrowings. While we had no borrowings at March 31, 2011, we have the ability to use advances from the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta to supplement our investable funds. The Federal Home Loan Bank functions
as a central reserve bank providing credit for member financial institutions. As a member, we are required to own
capital stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta and are authorized to apply for advances on the security of
such stock and certain of our mortgage loans and other assets (principally securities which are obligations of, or
guaranteed by, the United States), provided certain standards related to creditworthiness have been met. Advances
are made under several different programs, each having its own interest rate and range of maturities. Depending on
the program, limitations on the amount of advances are based either on a fixed percentage of an institution’s net
worth, the Federal Home Loan Bank’s assessment of the institution’s creditworthiness, collateral value and level of
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ownership. We may also utilize securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
overnight repurchase agreements to supplement our supply of investable funds and to meet deposit withdrawal
requirements. We had borrowing capacity of approximately $30.8 million with the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta as of March, 31, 2011. The Bank also has a $2.5 million unused line of credit with a large financial
institution.

Compétition

We face significant competition for the attraction of deposits and origination of loans. Our most direct
competition for deposits has historically come from the many financial institutions operating in our primary market
area and from other financial service companies such as securities brokerage firms, credit unions and insurance
companies. We also face competition for investors’ funds from money market funds, mutual funds and other
corporate and government securities. At June 30, 2010, which is the most recent date for which data is available
from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, we held approximately 0.23% of the deposits in Baltimore County,
Maryland, 1.56% of the deposits in Harford County, Maryland and 0.23% of the deposits in Baltimore City,
Maryland. This data does not reflect deposits held by credit unions with which we also compete. In addition, banks
owned by large national and regional holding companies and other community-based banks also operate in our
primary market area. Most of these institutions are larger than us and, therefore, may have greater resources.

Our competition for loans comes primarily from financial institutions, including credit unions, in our
primary market area and from other financial service providers, such as mortgage companies and mortgage brokers.
Competition for loans also comes from non-depository financial services companies entering the mortgage market,
such as insurance companies, securities companies and specialty finance companies.

We expect competition to increase in the future as a result of legislative, regulatory and technological
changes and the continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services industry. Technological advances, for
example, have lowered barriers to entry, allowed banks to expand their geographic reach by providing services over
the Internet, and made it possible for non-depository institutions to offer products and services that traditionally have
been provided by banks. Changes in federal law now permit affiliation among banks, securities firms and insurance
companies, which promotes a competitive environment in the financial services industry. Competition for deposits
and the origination of loans could limit our growth in the future. -



Personnel

As of March 31, 2011, we had 30 full-time employees and 5 part-time employees, none of whom is
represented by a collective bargaining unit. We believe our relationship with our employees is good.

Subsidiaries

The Bank has one subsidiary, Madison Financial Services Corporation (“MFSC”). MFSC was established
in January 1994 as a licensed Maryland insurance provider, and provides insurance brokerage and agency services
for liability, casualty, automobile, life, health or accident insurance and sales of non-deposit investment products.
At March 31, 2011, MFSC had assets of $32,000. It contributed net income of $20,000 and $10,000 for the years
ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Regulation and Supervision

General. As afederally chartered savings institution, Madison Square Federal Savings Bank is subject to
extensive regulation, examination and supervision by the Office of Thrift Supervision, as its primary federal
regulator, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as its deposits insurer. Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, and its deposit accounts are insured up to applicable
limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund managed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Madison Square
Federal Savings Bank must file reports with the Office of Thrift Supervision and the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation concerning its activities and financial condition in addition to obtaining regulatory approval before
entering into certain transactions such as mergers with, or acquisitions of, other financial institutions. There are
periodic examinations by the Office of Thrift Supervision and, under certain circumstances, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation to evaluate Madison Square Federal Savings Bank’s safety and soundness and compliance
with various regulatory requirements. This regulatory structure is intended primarily for the protection of the
insurance fund and depositors. The regulatory structure also gives the regulatory authorities extensive discretion in
connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with
respect to the classification of assets and the establishment of adequate loan loss reserves for regulatory purposes.
Any change in such policies, whether by the Office of Thrift Supervision, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
or Congress, could have a material adverse impact on Madison Bancorp and Madison Square Federal Savings Bank
and their operations. Madison Bancorp, as a savings and loan holding company, is required to file certain reports
with, is subject to examination by, and otherwise must comply with the rules and regulations of the Office of Thrift
Supervision. Madison Bancorp is also subject to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the federal securities laws.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), enacted into
law on July 21, 2010, provides for the regulation and supervision of federal savings banks like Madison Square
Federal Savings Bank to be transferred to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the agency that regulates
national banks. The transfer will occur over a transition period of one year from the date of enactment, subject to a
possible six-month extension. At the same, time, responsibility for supervising savings and loan holding companies
will be transferred to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”). The
Dodd-Frank Act also provides for the creation of a new agency, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, as an
independent bureau of the Federal Reserve Board, to take over implementation of federal consumer financial
protection and fair lending laws from depository institution regulators. However, institutions of $10 billion or fewer
in assets will continue to be examined for compliance with such laws and regulations by, and subject to the
enforcement authority of, the prudential regulator rather than the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau.

The Durbin Amendment to the Dodd-Frank Act instructed the Federal Reserve Board to establish the rate
merchants pay banks for electronic clearing of debit card transactions (i.e., the interchange rate). Interchange fees
accounted for approximately $20,000 of service charge out income, or just over 7.5% of total service charge income
for the year ended March 31, 2011. The Federal Reserve Board has put out a proposal for comment that would cap
the interchange rate at either $0.07 or $0.12 per transaction. While these rates are not finalized, if they are
implemented, we estimate that approximately 70% of our interchange income could be lost. The new rate is
scheduled to take effect on July 21, 2011.



Regulation of Federal Savings Banks

Business Activities. Federal law and regulations, primarily the Home Owners’ Loan Act and the
regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision, govern the activities of federal savings banks, such as Madison
Square Federal Savings Bank. These laws and regulations delineate the nature and extent of the activities in which
federal savings banks may engage. In particular, certain lending authority for federal savings banks, e.g.,
commercial, nonresidential real property loans and consumer loans, is limited to a specified percentage of the
institution’s capital or assets.

Branching. Federal savings banks are authorized to establish branch offices in any state or states of the
United States and its territories, subject to the approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision.

Capital Requirements. The Office of Thrift Supervision’s capital regulations require federal savings
institutions to meet three minimum capital standards: a 1.5% tangible capital to total assets ratio, a 4% leverage ratio
(3% for institutions receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS examination rating system) and an 8% risk-based
capital ratio. In addition, the prompt corrective action standards discussed below establish, in effect, a minimum 2%
tangible capital standard, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for institutions receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS
system) and, together with the risk-based capital standard itself, a 4% Tier 1 risk-based capital standard. The Office
of Thrift Supervision regulations also require that, in meeting the tangible, leverage and risk-based capital standards,
institutions must generally deduct investments in and loans to subsidiaries engaged in activities as principal that are
not permissible for national banks.

The risk-based capital standard requires federal savings institutions to maintain Tier 1 (core) and total
capital (which is defined as core capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighted assets of at least 4% and 8%,
respectively. In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including certain off-balance sheet
assets, recourse obligations, residual interests and direct credit substitutes, are multiplied by a risk-weight factor of
0% to 100%, assigned by the Office of Thrift Supervision capital regulation based on the risks believed inherent in
the type of asset. Core (Tier 1) capital is defined as common shareholders’ equity (including retained earnings),
certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus and minority interests in equity accounts of
consolidated subsidiaries, less intangibles other than certain mortgage servicing rights and credit card relationships.
The components of supplementary capital currently include cumulative preferred stock, long-term perpetual
preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, subordinated debt and intermediate preferred stock, the allowance
for loan and lease losses limited to a maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets and up to 45% of unrealized gains
on available-for-sale equity securities with readily determinable fair market values. Overall, the amount of
supplementary capital included as part of total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital.

The Office of Thrift Supervision also has authority to establish individual minimum capital requirements in
appropriate cases upon a determination that an institution’s capital level is or may become inadequate in light of the
particular circumstances. At March 31, 2011, Madison Square Federal Savings Bank met each of these capital
requirements. See note 12 of the notes to audited consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action. The Office of Thrift Supervision is required to take certain
supervisory actions against undercapitalized savings institutions, the severity of which depends upon the
institution’s degree of undercapitalization. Generally, a savings institution that has a ratio of total capital to risk-
weighted assets of less than 8%, a ratio of Tier 1 (core) capital to risk-weighted assets of less than 4% or a ratio of
core capital to total assets of less than 4% (3% or less for institutions with the highest examination rating) is
considered to be “undercapitalized.” A savings institution that has a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 6%, a
Tier 1 capital ratio of less than 3% or a leverage ratio that is less than 3% is considered to be “significantly
undercapitalized” and a savings institution that has a tangible capital to assets ratio equal to or less than 2% is
deemed to be “critically undercapitalized.” Subject to a narrow exception, the Office of Thrift Supervision is
required to appoint a receiver or conservator within specified time frames for an institution that is “critically
undercapitalized.” An institution must file a capital restoration plan with the Office of Thrift Supervision within 45
days of the date it receives notice that it is “undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” or “critically
undercapitalized.” Compliance with the plan must be guaranteed by any parent holding company in the amount of
the lesser of 5% of the association’s total assets when it became undercapitalized or the amount necessary to achieve
full compliance at the time the association first failed to comply. In addition, numerous mandatory supervisory
actions become immediately applicable to an undercapitalized institution, including, but not limited fo, increased
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monitoring by regulators and restrictions on growth, capital distributions and expansion. “Significantly
undercapitalized” and “critically undercapitalized” institutions are subject to more extensive mandatory regulatory
actions. The Office of Thrift Supervision could also take any one of a number of discretionary supervisory actions,
including the issuance of a capital directive and the replacement of senior executive officers and directors.

Loans to One Borrower. Federal law provides that savings institutions are generally subject to the limits
on loans to one borrower applicable to national banks. Subject to certain exceptions, a savings institution may not
make a loan or extend credit to a single or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of its unimpaired capital and
surplus. An additional amount may be lent, equal to 10% of ummpalred capital and surplus, if secured by specified
readily-marketable collateral.

Standards for Safety and Soundness. As required by statute, the federal banking agencies have adopted
Interagency Guidelines Establishing Standards for Safety and Soundness. The guidelines set forth the safety and
soundness standards that the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository
institutions before capital becomes impaired. If the Office of Thrift Supervision determines that a savings institution
fails to meet any standard prescribed by the guidelines, the Office of Thrift Supervision may require the institution
to submit an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard.

Limitation on Capital Distributions. Office of Thrift Supervision regulations impose limitations upon all
capital distributions by a savings institution, including cash dividends, payments to repurchase its shares, payments
to shareholders of another institution in a cash-out merger and other transactions charged to the capital account..
Under the regulations, an application to and the prior approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision is required before
any capital distribution if the institution does not meet the criteria for “expedited treatment” of applications under
Office of Thrift Supervision regulations (i.e., generally, examination and Community Reinvestment Act ratings in
the two top categories), the total capital distributions for the calendar year exceed net income for that year plus the
amount of retained net income for the preceding two years, the institution would be undercapitalized following the
distribution or the distribution would otherwise be contrary to a statute, regulation or agreement with the Office of
Thrift Supervision. If an application is not required, the institution must still provide prior notice to the Office of
Thrift Supervision of the capital distribution if it is a subsidiary of a holding company. If Madison Square Federal
Savings Bank’s capital were ever to fall below its regulatory requirements or the Office of Thrift Supervision
notified it that it was in need of increased supervision, its ability to make capital distributions could be restricted. In
addition, the Office of Thrift Supervision could prohibit a proposed capital distribution that would otherwise be
permitted by the regulation, if the agency determines that such distribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound
practice.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test. Federal law requires savings institutions to meet a qualified thrift lender
test. Under the test, a savings association is required to either qualify as a “domestic building and loan association”
under the Internal Revenue Code or maintain at least 65% of its “portfolio assets” (total assets less: (i) specified
liquid assets up to 20% of total assets; (ii) intangibles, including goodwill; and (iii) the value of property used to
conduct business) in certain “qualified thrift investments” (primarily residential mortgages and related investments,
including certain mortgage-backed securities) in at least nine months out of each 12-month period.

A savings institution that fails the qualified thrift lender test is subject to certain operating restrictions and
may be required to convert to a bank charter. As of March 31, 2011, Madison Square Federal Savings Bank
maintained 86.30% of its portfolio assets in qualified thrift investments and, therefore, met the qualified thrift lender
test.

Transactions with Related Parties. Madison Square Federal Savings Bank’s authority to engage in
transactions with “affiliates” is limited by Office of Thrift Supervision regulations and Sections 23A and 23B of the
Federal Reserve Act as implemented by the Federal Reserve Board’s Regulation W. The term “affiliates” for these
purposes generally means any entity that controls or is under common control with Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank, including the Company and its other subsidiary. In general, transactions with affiliates must be on terms that
are as favorable to the institution as comparable transactions with non-affiliates. In addition, certain types of
transactions are restricted to 10% of an institution’s capital and surplus with any one affiliate and 20% of capital and
surplus with all affiliates. Collateral in specified amounts must usually be provided by affiliates in order to receive
loans from an institution. In addition, savings institutions are prohibited from lending to any affiliate that is engaged
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in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies and no savings institution may purchase the
securities of any affiliate other than a subsidiary.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits a company from making loans to its executive officers
and directors. However, that act contains a specific exception for loans by a depository institution to its executive
officers and directors in compliance with federal banking laws. Under such laws, Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank’s authority to extend credit to executive officers, directors and 10% shareholders (“insiders™), as well as
entities such persons control, is limited. The law restricts both the individual and aggregate amount of loans
Madison Square Federal Savings Bank may make to insiders based, in part, on Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank’s capital position and requires certain board approval procedures to be followed. Such loans must be made on
terms substantially the same as those offered to unaffiliated individuals and not involve more than the normal risk of
repayment. There is an exception for loans made pursuant to a benefit or compensation program that is widely
available to all employees of the institution and does not give preference to insiders over other employees. There
are additional restrictions applicable to loans to executive officers.

Enforcement. The Office of Thrift Supervision has primary enforcement responsibility over federal
savings institutions and has the authority to bring actions against the institution and all institution-affiliated parties,
including shareholders, and any attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in
wrongful action likely to have an adverse effect on an insured institution. Formal enforcement action may range
from the issuance of a capital directive or cease and desist order to removal of officers and/or directors to institution
of receivership, or conservatorship. Civil penalties cover a wide range of violations and can amount to $25,000 per
day, or even $1 million per day in especially egregious cases. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has
authority to recommend to the Director of the Office of Thrift Supervision that enforcement action be taken with
respect to a particular savings institution. If action is not taken by the Director, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation has authority to take such action under certain circumstances. Federal law also establishes criminal
penalties for certain violations.

The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency will assume enforcement authority of the Office of Thrift
Supervision as part of the Dodd-Frank Act regulatory restructuring.

Assessments. Federal savings banks are required to pay assessments to the Office of Thrift Supervision to
fund its operations. The general assessments, paid on a semi-annual basis, are based upon the savings institution’s
total assets, including consolidated subsidiaries, as reported in the institution’s latest quarterly thrift financial report,
the institution’s financial condition and the complexity of its asset portfolio. The Bank’s Office of Thrift
Supervision assessment for fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 was $77,000. The Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency also funds its operations through assessments on regulated institutions.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. Madison Square Federal Savings Bank’s deposits are insured up to
applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Under the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation’s risk-based assessment system, insured institutions are assigned to one of four risk
categories based on supervisory evaluations, regulatory capital levels and certain other factors, with less risky
institutions paying lower assessments. Well capitalized institutions that are financially sound with only a few minor
weaknesses are assigned to Risk Category I. Risk Categories I, III and IV present progressively greater risks to the
Deposit Insurance Fund. Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s risk-based assessment rules, effective
April 1, 2009 through March 31, 2011, the initial base assessment rates prior to adjustments range from 12 to 16
basis points for Risk Category I, and are 22 basis points for Risk Category II, 32 basis points for Risk Category III,
and 45 basis points for Risk Category IV. Initial base assessment rates are subject to adjustments based on an
institution’s unsecured debt, secured liabilities and brokered deposits, such that the total base assessment rates after
adjustments range from 7 to 24 basis points for Risk Category I, 17 to 43 basis points for Risk Category II, 27 to 58
basis points for Risk Category III, and 40 to 77.5 basis points for Risk Category IV. Rates increased uniformly by
three basis points effective January 1, 2011.

As required by the Dodd-Frank Act, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has adopted rules effective
April 1, 2011, under which insurance premium assessments are based on an institution’s total assets minus its
tangible equity (defined as Tier 1 capital) instead of its deposits. Under these rules, an institution with total assets of
less than $10 billion will be assigned to a Risk Category as described above, and a range of initial base assessment
rates will apply to each category, subject to adjustment downward based on unsecured debt issued by the institution
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and, except for an institution in Risk Category I, adjustment upward if the institution’s brokered deposits exceed
10% of its domestic deposits, to produce total base assessment rates. Total base assessment rates range from 2.5 to 9
basis points for Risk Category I, 9 to 24 basis points for Risk Category II, 18 to 33 basis points for Risk Category
III, and 30 to 45 basis points for Risk Category IV, all subject to further adjustment upward if the institution holds
more than a de minims amount of unsecured debt issued by another FDIC-insured institution. The FDIC may
increase or decrease its rates by 2.0 basis points without further rulemaking. In an emergency, the FDIC may also
impose a special assessment. No institution may pay a dividend if in default of the federal deposit insurance
assessment.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation imposed on all insured institutions a special emergency
assessment of five basis points of total assets minus Tier 1 capital, as of June 30, 2009 (capped at ten basis points of
an institution’s deposit assessment base), in order to cover losses to the Deposit Insurance Fund. That special
assessment was collected on September 30, 2009. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation provided for similar
assessments during the final two quarters of 2009, if deemed necessary. However, in lieu of further special
assessments, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation required insured institutions to prepay estimated quarterly
risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 through the fourth quarter of 2012. The estimated
assessments, which include an assumed annual assessment base increase of 5%, were recorded as a prepaid expense
asset as of December 30, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, and each quarter thereafter, a charge to earnings will be
recorded for each regular assessment with an offsetting credit to the prepaid asset.

Due to the recent difficult economic conditions, deposit insurance per account owner has been raised to
$250,000 for all types of accounts until January 1, 2014, which was subsequently made permanent by the Dodd-
Frank Act. In addition, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation adopted an optional Temporary Liquidity
Guarantee Program by which, for a fee, noninterest-bearing transaction accounts would receive unlimited insurance
coverage until June 30, 2010, subsequently extended to December 31, 2012, and certain senior unsecured debt
issued by institutions and their holding companies between October 13, 2008 and October 31, 2009 would be
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation through June 30, 2012, or in some cases, December 31,
2012. Madison Square Federal Savings Bank opted to participate in the unlimited noninterest-bearing transaction
account coverage and in the unsecured debt guarantee program.

In addition to the assessment for deposit insurance, institutions are required to make payments on bonds
issued in the late 1980s by the Financing Corporation to recapitalize a predecessor deposit insurance fund. That
payment is established quarterly and during the four quarters ending March 31, 2011 averaged 1.025 basis points of
assessable deposits.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has authority to increase insurance assessments. A significant
increase in insurance premiums would likely have an adverse effect on the operating expenses and results of
operations of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank. Management cannot predict what insurance assessment rates
will be in the future.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation upon a finding that
the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue
operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or the Office of Thrift Supervision. The management of Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank does not know of any practice, condition or violation that might lead to termination of deposit insurance.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Madison Square Federal Savings Bank is a member of the Federal
Home Loan Bank System, which consists of twelve regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan
Bank provides a central credit facility primarily for member institutions. Madison Square Federal Savings Bank, as
a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in that
Federal Home Loan Bank. AtMarch 31, 2011, Madison Square Federal Savings Bank complied with this
requirement with an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock of $243,000.

The Federal Home Loan Banks are required to provide funds for the resolution of insolvent thrifts in the
late 1980s and to contribute funds for affordable housing programs. These requirements, or general results of
operations, could reduce or eliminate the dividends that the Federal Home Loan Banks pay to their members and
result in the Federal Home Loan Banks imposing a higher rate of interest on advances to their members. If
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dividends are reduced, or interest on future Federal Home Loan Bank advances increased, our net interest income
could also be reduced. In fact, Federal Home Loan Bank dividends have been significantly reduced over the past
two years from previous levels.

Community Reinvestment Act. Under the Community Reinvestment Act, as implemented by Office of
Thrift Supervision regulations, every Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured savings association has a
continuing and affirmative obligation consistent with its safe and sound operation to help meet the credit needs of its
entire community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods. The Community Reinvestment Act does not
establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit.an institution’s
discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its particular community,
consistent with the Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act requires the Office of Thrift
Supervision, in connection with its examination of a savings association, to assess the institution’s record of meeting
the credit needs of its community and to take such record into account in its evaluation of certain applications by
such institution.

The Community Reinvestment Act requires public disclosure of an institution’s rating and requires the
Office of Thrift Supervision to provide a written evaluation of an association’s Community Reinvestment Act
performance utilizing a four-tiered descriptive rating system.

Madison Square Federal Savings Bank received a “satisfactory” rating as a result of its most recent
Community Reinvestment Act assessment.

Other Regulations

Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by Madison Square Federal Savings Bank are subject
to state usury laws and federal laws concerning interest rates. Madison Square Federal Savings Bank’s operations
are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such as the:

e  Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;
¢ Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring financial institutions to provide information to enable the
public and public officials to determine whether a financial institution is fulfilling its obligation to help meet

the housing needs of the community it serves;

e Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other prohibited
factors in extending credit;

e Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1978, governing the use and provision of information to credit reporting
agencies;

e Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by collection
agencies; and

* Rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of implementing such
federal laws.

The operations of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank also are subject to the:

e Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer financial
records and prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records;

¢  Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E promulgated there under, which governs automatic deposits
to and withdrawals from deposit accounts and customers’ rights and liabilities arising from the use of
automated teller machines and other electronic banking services;

e Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act (also known as “Check 21”), which gives “substitute checks,” such
as digital check images and copies made from that image, the same legal standing as the original paper check;
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e  Title III of the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and
Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (referred to as the “USA PATRIOT Act”), which significantly expands the
responsibilities of financial institutions, including savings and loan associations, in preventing the use of the
U.S. financial system to fund terrorist activities. Among other provisions, it requires financial institutions
operating in the United States to develop new anti-money laundering compliance programs, due diligence
policies and controls to ensure the detection and reporting of money laundering. Such required compliance
programs are intended to supplement existing compliance requirements, also applicable to financial
institutions, under the Bank Secrecy Act and the Office of Foreign Assets Control Regulations; and

e  The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act places limitations on the sharing of consumer financial information with
unaffiliated third parties. Specifically, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act requires all financial institutions offering
financial products or services to retail customers to provide such customers with the financial institution’s
privacy policy and provide such customers the opportunity to “opt out” of the sharing of personal financial
information with unaffiliated third parties.

Federal Reserve System

The Federal Reserve Board regulations require savings institutions to maintain non-interest earning
reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (“NOW™), Super NOW and
regular checking accounts). The regulations generally provide that reserves be maintained against aggregate
transaction accounts as follows: a 3% reserve ratio is assessed on net transaction accounts up to and including $58.8
million; a 10% reserve ratio is applied above $58.8 million. The first $10.7 million of otherwise reservable balances
(subject to adjustments by the Federal Reserve Board) are exempted from the reserve requirements. The amounts
are adjusted annually. Madison Square Federal Savings Bank complies with the foregoing requirements.

Holding Company Regulation

General. Madison Bancorp is a unitary savings and loan holding company within the meaning of federal
law and is registered with and subject to office of Thrift Supervision regulations. In addition, the Office of Thrift
Supervision has enforcement authority over the Company and its non-savings institution subsidiaries. Among other
things, this.authority permits the Office of Thrift Supervision to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to
be a serious risk to the Bank. As a savings and loan holding company, the Company is able to engage only in
activities permitted to a financial holding company and those permitted for a multiple savings and loan holding
company, which includes non-banking activities that have been determined to be permissible for bank holding
companies. As part of the Dodd-Frank Act regulatory restructuring, the office of Thrift Supervision’s authority over
savings and loan holding companies will be transferred to the Federal Reserve Board, which is the agency that
regulates bank holding companies.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 provided that no company may acquire control of a savings
institution after May 4, 1999 unless it engages only in the financial activities permitted for financial holding
companies under the law or for multiple savings and loan holding companies as described below. Further, the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act specifies that, subject to a grandfather provision, existing savings and loan holding
companies may only engage in such activities. Upon any non-supervisory acquisition by Madison Bancorp of
another savings institution that meets the qualified thrift lender test and is deemed to be a savings institution by the
Office of Thrift Supervision, Madison Bancorp would become a multiple savings and loan holding company (if the
acquired institution is held as a separate subsidiary) and would generally be limited to activities permissible for bank
holding companies under Section 4(c)(8) of the Bank Holding Company Act, subject to the prior approval of the
Office of Thrift Supervision, and certain activities authorized by Office of Thrift Supervision regulations. However,
the Office of Thrift Supervision has issued an interpretation concluding that multiple savings and loan holding
companies may also engage in activities permitted for financial holding companies.

A savings and loan holding company is prohibited from, directly or indirectly, acquiring more than 5% of
the voting stock of another savings institution or savings and loan holding company, without prior written approval
of the Office of Thrift Supervision, and from acquiring or retaining control of a depository institution that is not
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. In evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire
savings institutions, the Office of Thrift Supervision considers the financial and managerial resources and future
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prospects of the company and institution involved, the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the deposit insurance
funds, the convenience and needs of the community and competitive factors.

The Office of Thrift Supervision may not approve any acquisition that would result in a multiple savings
and loan holding company controlling savings institutions in more than one state, subject to two exceptions: (i) the
approval of interstate supervisory acquisitions by savings and loan holding companies; and (ii) the acquisition of a
savings institution in another state if the laws of the state of the target savings institution specifically permit such
acquisitions. The states vary in the extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company
acquisitions. E

Savings and loan holding companies are not currently subject to specific regulatory capital requirements. The
Dodd-Frank Act, however, requires the Federal Reserve Board to promulgate consolidated capital requirements for
depository institution holding companies that are no less stringent, both quantitatively and in terms of components of
capital, than those applicable to institutions themselves. That will mean that trust preferred securities and
cumulative preferred stock will not be includable in Tier 1 capital unless issued prior to May 19, 2010. There is a
five-year transition period before the capital requirements will apply to savings and loan holding companies. The
Dodd-Frank Act also extends the “source of strength” doctrine to savings and loan holding companies. The
regulatory agencies must issue regulations requiring that all bank and savings and loan holding companies serve as a
source of strength to their subsidiary depository institutions.

The Bank must notify the Office of Thrift Supervision 30 days before declaring any dividend to Madison’
Bancorp. In addition, the financial impact of a holding company on its subsidiary institution is a matter that is
evaluated by the Office of Thrift Supervision and the agency has authority to order cessation of activities or
divestiture of subsidiaries deemed to pose a threat to the safety and soundness of the institution.

Acquisition of Control. Under the federal Change in Bank Control Act, a notice must be submitted to the
Office of Thrift Supervision if any person (including a company), or group acting in concert, seeks to acquire
“control” of a savings and loan holding company or savings association. An acquisition of “control” can occur upon
the acquisition of 10% or more of the voting stock of a savings and loan holding company or savings institution or
as otherwise defined by the Office of Thrift Supervision. Under the Change in Bank Control Act, the Office of
Thrift Supervision has 60 days from the filing of a complete notice to act, taking into consideration certain factors,
including the financial and managerial resources of the acquirer and the anti-trust effects of the acquisition. Any
company that so acquires control would then be subject to regulation as a savings and loan holding company.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 addresses, among other issues, corporate governance, auditing and
accounting, executive compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate information. As directed by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Madison Bancorp’s principal executive and financial officers are required to
certify that Madison Bancorp’s quarterly and annual reports do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact.
The rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have several
requirements, including having the principal executive and financial officers each certify that: he is responsible for
establishing, maintaining and regularly evaluating the effectiveness of our internal controls; he has made certain
disclosures to our auditors and the audit committee of the board of directors about our internal controls; and he has
included information in our quarterly and annual reports about his evaluation and whether there have been
significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls.
Madison Bancorp will be subject to further reporting and audit requirements beginning with the year ended March
31, 2011 under the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Madison Bancorp will prepare policies, procedures and
systems designed to ensure compliance with these regulations.

Federal Income Taxation

General. We report our income on a fiscal year basis using the accrual method of accounting. The federal
income tax laws apply to us in the same manner as to other corporations with some exceptions, including
particularly our reserve for bad debts discussed below. The following discussion of tax matters is intended only as a
summary and does not purport to be a comprehensive description of the tax rules applicable to us. Our federal
income tax returns have not been audited during the last five years. For its 2011 and 2010 fiscal years, the
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Company’s maximum statutory federal income tax rate was 34%, although we did not pay taxes for those years
because we incurred a net loss for the years. For future years where we are able to generate net income, we expect
to be able to use net operating losses to offset income and thereby reduce our effective tax rate. We had
approximately $479,000 of net operating loss carryforwards at March 31, 2011 which expire in 2030 and 2031, and
a capital loss carryforward of approximately $566,000, which expires in 2014.

The Company and the Bank have entered into a tax allocation agreement. Because the Company owns
100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Bank, the Company and the Bank will be members of an
affiliated group within the meaning of Section 1504(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, of which group the Company
will be the common parent corporation. As a result of this affiliation, the Bank may be included in the filing of a
consolidated federal income tax return with the Company and, if a decision to file a consolidated tax return is made,
the parties agree to compensate each other for their individual share of the consolidated tax liability and/or any tax
benefits provided by them in the filing of the consolidated federal income tax return.

Bad Debt Reserves. For fiscal years beginning before June 30, 1996, thrift institutions that qualified under
certain definitional tests and other conditions of the Internal Revenue Code were permitted to use certain favorable
provisions to calculate their deductions from taxable income for annual additions to their bad debt reserve. A
reserve could be established for bad debts on qualifying real property loans, generally secured by interests in real
property improved or to be improved, under the percentage of taxable income method or the experience method.
The reserve for nonqualifying loans was computed using the experience method. Federal legislation enacted in 1996
repealed the reserve method of accounting for bad debts and the percentage of taxable income method for tax years
beginning after 1995 and require savings institutions to recapture or take into income certain portions of their
accumulated bad debt reserves.

Distributions. If the Bank makes “non-dividend distributions” to the Company, the distributions will be
considered to have been made from the Bank’s unrecaptured tax bad debt reserves, including the balance of its
reserves as of December 31, 1987, to the extent of the “non-dividend distributions,” and then from the Bank’s
supplemental reserve for losses on loans, to the extent of those reserves, and an amount based on the amount
distributed, but not more than the amount of those reserves, will be included in the Bank’s taxable income. Non-
dividend distributions include distributions in excess of the Bank’s current and accumulated earnings and profits, as
calculated for federal income tax purposes, distributions in redemption of stock, and distributions in partial or
complete liquidation. Dividends paid out of the Bank’s current or accumulated earnings and profits will not be
included in the Bank’s taxable income.

The amount of additional taxable income triggered by a non-dividend is an amount that, when reduced by
the tax attributable to the income, is equal to the amount of the distribution. Therefore, if the Bank makes a non-
dividend distribution to the Company, approximately one and one-half times the amount of the distribution not in
excess of the amount of the reserves would be includable in income for federal income tax purposes, assuming a
34% federal corporate income tax rate. Madison Square Federal Savings Bank does not intend to pay dividends that
would result in a recapture of any portion of its bad debt reserves.

State Taxation

The state of Maryland imposes an income tax of approximately 8.25% on income measured substantially
the same as federally taxable income. The state of Maryland currently assesses a personal property tax for
December 2000 and forward.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We have had losses in recent years, and if we cannot increase our income to competitive levels, our stock price
may be adversely affected.

We have had losses in recent years, including net losses of $57,000, $855,000 and $1.7 million for the
years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Our return on average assets was (0.04)%, (0.59)% and
(1.33)% for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and our return on average equity was
(0.50)%, (9.17)% and (16.39)% for the years ended March 31,2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. We have
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identified various strategic initiatives we will pursue in our efforts to overcome these challenges and improve
earnings. These strategic initiatives include the following:

e  building on our strengths as a community-oriented financial institution;

*  growing our balance sheet by increasing commercial real estate and commercial business loans;
e emphasizing lower cost core deposits to maintain low funding costs;

¢  controlling noninterest expenses;

* adding a new branch in our existing market area or a contiguous county within the next three
years; and

e expanding our market share within our primary market area.

For a detailed description of our strategic initiatives to improve earnings, see “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Operating Strategy.” However, our strategic
initiatives may not succeed in generating and increasing income. If we are unable to generate or increase income,
our stock price may be adversely affected. Moreover, even if we are successful in generating net income, our
earnings may be low for some time. In such event, our return on equity, which equals net income divided by
average equity, may be below returns on equity achieved by peer institutions, which also could adversely affect our
stock price.

Our increased emphasis on commercial real estate and commercial lending may expose us to increased
lending risks.

In recent years we have significantly increased our emphasis on commercial real estate and commercial
lending. Commercial real estate loans increased from $ 10.6 million, or 11.8% of our total loans, at March 31, 2009
to $12.2 million, or 14.0% of our total loans, at March 31, 2011. Commercial loans increased from $3.1 million, or
3.5% of our total loans, at March 31, 2009 to $5.0 million, or 5.7% of our total loans, at March 31, 2011. Moreover
as part of our strategy to increase earnings, we will seek to continue to increase commercial real estate lending, as
well as commercial lending, and intend to add commercial lending personnel to assist us in these efforts. These
types of loans generally expose a lender to greater risk of nonpayment and loss than single-family residential
mortgage loans because repayment of the loans often depends on the successful operation of the property and the
income stream of the borrowers and, for commercial construction loans, the accuracy of the estimate of the
property’s value at completion of construction and the estimated cost of construction. Such loans typically involve
larger loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers compared to single-family residential
mortgage loans. Commercial business loans expose us to additional risks since they typically are made on the basis
of the borrower’s ability to make repayments from the cash flow of the borrower’s business and are secured by
nonreal estate collateral that may depreciate over time. In addition, since such loans generally entail greater risk
than single-family residential mortgage loans, we may need to increase our allowance for loan losses in the future
associated with the growth of such loans. Also, many of our commercial and construction borrowers have more
than one loan outstanding with us. Consequently, an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit
relationship can expose us to a significantly greater risk of loss compared to an adverse development with respect to
a single-family residential mortgage loan. In addition, because of the increases in commercial real estate and
commercial loans in recent years, much of our portfolio of these types of loans is unseasoned, although many of
these loans are to borrowers we know well and with whom we have other borrowing or deposit relationships.

)

Significant loan losses could require us to increase our allowance for loan losses through a charge to earnings.

When we loan money, we incur the risk that our borrowers will not repay their loans. We provide for loan
losses by establishing an allowance through a charge to earnings. The amount of this allowance is based on our
assessment of loan losses inherent in our loan portfolio. The process for determining the amount of the allowance is
critical to our financial condition and results of operations. It requires subjective and complex judgments about the
future, including forecasts of economic or market conditions that might impair the ability of our borrowers to repay
their loans. We might underestimate the loan losses inherent in our loan portfolio and have loan losses in excess of
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the amount recorded in our allowance for loan losses. We might increase the allowance because of changing
economic conditions. For example, in a rising interest rate environment, borrowers with adjustable-rate loans could
see their payments increase. There may be a significant increase in the number of borrowers who are unable or
unwilling to repay their loans, resulting in our charging off more loans and increasing our allowance. In addition,
when real estate values decline, the potential severity of loss on a real estate-secured loan can increase significantly,
especially in the case of loans with high combined loan-to-value ratios. The recent decline in the national economy
and the local economies of the areas in which the loans are concentrated could result in an increase in loan
delinquencies, foreclosures or repossessions resulting in increased charge-off amounts and the need for additional
loan loss allowances in future periods. In addition, our determination as to the amount of our allowance for loan
losses is subject to review by our primary regulator, the Office of Thrift Supervision, as part of its examination
process, which may result in the establishment of an additional allowance based upon the judgment of the Office of
Thrift Supervision after a review of the information available at the time of its examination. Our allowance for loan
losses amounted to $636,000, or 0.73% of total loans outstanding and 6,955.62% of non-performing loans, at March
31,2011. Our allowance for loan losses at March 31, 2011 may not be sufficient to cover future loan losses. A
large loss could deplete the allowance and require increased provisions to replenish the allowance, which would
decrease our earnings. In addition, at March 31, 2011, we had 10 loan relationships with outstanding balances, net
of participation interests sold, that exceeded $1.0 million, all of which were performing according to their original
terms. However, the deterioration of one or more of these loans could result in a significant increase in our non-
performing loans and our provision for loan losses, which would negatively impact our results of operations.

If we conclude that the decline in value of any of our investment securities is other than temporary, we are
required to write down the value of that security through a charge to earnings.

We review our investment securities portfolio at each quarter-end reporting period to determine whether
the fair value is below the current carrying value. When the fair value of any of our investment securities has
declined below its carrying value, we are required to assess whether the decline is other-than-temporary. If we
conclude that the decline is other-than-temporary, we are required to write down the value of that security through a
charge to earnings. Changes in the expected cash flows of these securities and/or prolonged price declines may
result in our concluding in future periods that the impairment of these securities is other than temporary, which
would require a charge to earnings to write down theses securities to their fair value. Any charges for other-than-
temporary impairment would not impact cash flow, tangible capital or liquidity.

The loss of senior management could hurt our operations.

We rely heavily on our executive officers, Messrs. Gavin, Wallace and Ballard, Ms. Kline and Ms.
Webster. The loss of one or more members of senior management could have an adverse effect on us because, as a
small community bank, our senior executive officers have more responsibility than would be typical at a larger
financial institution with more employees. In addition, as a small community bank, we have fewer management-
level personnel who are in a position to assume the responsibilities of our senior executive officers. We have
purchased key man life insurance for Mr. Wallace only.

Continued turmoil in the financial markets could have an adverse effect on our financial position or results of
operations.

Beginning in 2008, United States and global financial markets experienced severe disruption and volatility,
and general economic conditions have declined significantly. Adverse developments in credit quality, asset values
and revenue opportunities throughout the financial services industry, as well as general uncertainty regarding the
economic, industry and regulatory environment, have had a negative impact on the industry. The United States and
the governments of other countries have taken steps to try to stabilize the financial system, including investing in
financial institutions, and have implemented programs intended to improve general economic conditions. The U.S.
Department of the Treasury created the Capital Purchase Program under the Troubled Asset Relief Program,
pursuant to which the Treasury Department provided additional capital to participating financial institutions through
the purchase of preferred stock or other securities. Other measures include homeowner relief that encourages loan
restructuring and modification; the establishment of significant liquidity and credit facilities for financial institutions
and investment banks; the lowering of the federal funds rate; regulatory action against short selling practices; a
temporary guaranty program for money market funds; the establishment of a commercial paper funding facility to
provide back-stop liquidity to commercial paper issuers; and coordinated international efforts to address illiquidity
and other weaknesses in the banking sector. Notwithstanding the actions of the United States and other -
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governments, there can be no assurance that these efforts will be successful in restoring industry; economic or
market conditions to their previous levels and that they will not result in adverse unintended consequences. Factors
that could continue to pressure financial services companies, including Madison Bancorp, are numerous and include:

* worsening credit quality, leading among other things to increases in loan losses and reserves,

* continued or worsening disruption and volatility in financial markets, leading among other things
to continuing reductions in asset values,

e capital and liquidity concerns regarding financial institutions generally,

¢ limitations resulting from or imposed in connection with governmental actions intended to
stabilize or provide additional regulation of the financial system, or

® recessionary conditions that are deeper or last longer than currently anticipated.

The recent economic downturn could result in increases in our level of nonperforming loans and/or reduce
demand for our products and services, which would lead to lower revenue, higher loan losses and lower
earnings.

Our business activities and earnings are affected by general business conditions in the United States and in
our primary market area. These conditions include short-term and long-term interest rates, inflation, unemployment
levels, monetary supply, consumer confidence and spending, fluctuations in both debt and equity capital markets
and the strength of the economy in the United States generally and in our primary market area in particular.
Recently, the national economy has experienced a general downturn, with rising unemployment levels, declines in
real estate values and an erosion in consumer confidence. These economic conditions also had a negative impact on
our primary market area. In addition, our primary market area has experienced a softening of the local real estate
market, including reductions in local property values, and a decline in the local manufacturing industry, which
employs many of our borrowers. A prolonged or more severe economic downturn, continued elevated levels of
unemployment, further declines in the values of real estate, or other events that affect household and/or corporate
incomes could impair the ability of our borrowers to repay their loans in accordance with their terms. Nearly all of
our loans are secured by real estate or made to businesses in our primary market area, which consists of Baltimore
and Harford Counties and Baltimore City in Maryland and the surrounding areas. As a result of this concentration, a
prolonged or more severe downturn in the local economy could result in significant increases in non-performing
loans, which would negatively impact our interest income and result in higher provisions for loan losses, which
would decrease our earnings. The economic downturn could also result in reduced demand for credit or fee-based
products and services, which also would decrease our revenues.

Increased and/or special FDIC assessments will hurt our earnings.

The recent economic downturn has caused a high level of bank failures, which has dramatically increased
FDIC resolution costs and led to a significant reduction in the balance of the Deposit Insurance Fund. As a result,
the FDIC has significantly increased the initial base assessment rates paid by financial institutions for deposit
insurance. Increases in the base assessment rate have increased our deposit insurance costs and negatively impacted
our earnings. In addition, in May 2009, the FDIC imposed a special assessment on all insured institutions. Our
special assessment, which was reflected in earnings for the quarter ended June 30, 2009, was $67,000. In lieu of
imposing an additional special assessment, the FDIC required all institutions to prepay their assessments for all of
2010, 2011 and 2012, which for us totaled $863,000. Due to a recent change in the methodology that the FDIC uses
to calculate assessments, our actual assessment expense has decreased but additional increases in the base
assessment rate or additional special assessments would negatively impact our earnings.

Changing interest rates may decrease our earnings and asset value.
Our net interest income is the interest we earn on loans and investments less the interest we pay on our
deposits and borrowings. Our interest rate spread is the difference between the yield we earn on our assets and the

interest rate we pay for deposits and our other sources of funding. Changes in interest rates—up or down—could
adversely affect our interest rate spread and, as a result, our net interest income. Although the yield we earn on our
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assets and our funding costs tend to move in the same direction in response to changes in interest rates, one can rise
or fall faster than the other, causing our interest rate spread to expand or contract. Our liabilities tend to be shorter
in duration than our assets, so they may adjust faster in response to changes in interest rates. As a result, when
interest rates rise, our funding costs may rise faster than the yield we earn on our assets, causing our interest rate.
spread to contract until the yield catches up. This contraction could be more severe following a prolonged period of
lower interest rates, as a larger proportion of our fixed rate residential loan portfolio will have been originated at
those lower rates and borrowers may be more reluctant or unable to sell their homes in a higher interest rate
environment. Changes in the slope of the “yield curve”—or the spread between short-term and long-term interest
rates—could also reduce our net interest margin. Normally, the yield curve is upward sloping, meaning short-term
rates are lower than long-term rates. Because our liabilities tend to be shorter in duration than our assets, when the
yield curve flattens or even inverts, we could experience pressure on our interest rate spread as our cost of funds
increases relative to the yield we can earn on our assets. For further discussion of how changes in interest rates
could impact us, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Risk Management — Interest Rate Risk Management.”

Strong competition within our primary market area could negatively impact our profits and slow growth.

We face intense competition both in making loans and attracting deposits. This competition has made it
more difficult for us to make new loans and attract deposits. Price competition for loans and deposits might result in
us earning less on our loans and paying more on our deposits, which would reduce net interest income. Competition
also makes it more difficult to grow loans and deposits. At June 30, 2010, which is the most recent date for which
data is available from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, we held approximately 0.23% of the deposits in
Baltimore County, Maryland, 1.56% of the deposits in Harford County, Maryland and 0.23% of the deposits in
Baltimore City, Maryland. Most of the institutions with which we compete have substantially greater resources and
lending limits than we have and may offer services that we do not provide. We expect competition to increase in the
future as a result of legislative, regulatory and technological changes and the continuing trend of consolidation in the
financial services industry. Our profitability depends upon our continued ability to compete successfully in our
primary market area. See “Our Business — Market Area” and “Our Business — Competition” for more
information about our primary market area and the competition we face.

Recently enacted regulatory reform may have a material impact on our operations.

On July 21, 2010, the President signed into law The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”). The Dodd-Frank Act restructures the regulation of depository institutions.
Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the Office of Thrift Supervision will be transferred to the Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency, which regulates national banks. Savings and loan holding companies will be regulated by the Federal
Reserve Board. The Dodd-Frank Act contains various provisions designed to enhance the regulation of depository
institutions and prevent the recurrence of a financial crisis such as occurred in 2008-2009. Also included is the
creation of a new federal agency to administer consumer and fair lending laws, a function that is now performed by
the depository institution regulators. The federal preemption of state laws currently accorded federally chartered
depository institutions will be reduced as well. The Dodd-Frank Act also will impose consolidated capital
requirements on savings and loan holding companies effective in five years, which will limit our ability to borrow at
the holding company and invest the proceeds from such borrowings as capital in Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank that could be leveraged to support additional growth. The full impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our business
and operations will not be known for years until regulations implementing the statute are written and adopted. The
Dodd-Frank Act may have a material impact on our operations, particularly through increased comphance costs
resulting from possible future consumer and fair lending regulations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and we may be adversely affected by changes in laws and
regulations.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by the Office of Thrift Supervision,
our primary federal regulator, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as insurer of our deposits. Such
regulation and supervision governs the activities in which an institution and its holding company may engage, and
are intended primarily for the protection of the insurance fund and the depositors and borrowers of Madison Square
Federal Savings Bank rather than for holders of our common stock. Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion
in their supervisory and enforcement activities, including the imposition of restrictions on our operations, the
classification of our assets and determination of the level of our allowance for loan losses. Any change‘in such
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regulation and oversight, whether in the form of regulatory policy, regulations, legislation or supervisory action,
may have a material impact on our operations.

Additional expenses from operating as a public company will adversely affect our profitability.

Our noninterest expenses has increased as a result of the financial accounting, legal and various other
expenses associated with operating as a public company and complying with public company disclosure obligations,
particularly those obligations imposed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 will require us to upgrade our accounting systems, which will increase our operating expenses and
adversely affect our profitability.

We will incur additional expenses relating to our plan to hire additional lending personnel in furtherance of
our strategy to expand our lending activity.

Part of our strategic plan is to grow our balance sheet by increasing commercial real estate and commercial
business loans. When market conditions are more favorable, we may add additional lending personnel. We
anticipate that this initiative will enhance long-term shareholder value. However, upon the addition of new lending
personnel, we will be required to make increased expenditures for salaries and employee benefits, and it may take
some period of time for the new personnel to generate sufficient loan volume to offset these expend1tures
Accordingly, we anticipate that, in the short term, net income will be negatively affected.

Additional expenses from the implementation of new equity benefit plans will adversely affect our
profitability.

We will recognize additional annual employee compensation and benefit expenses stemming from options
and shares of common stock granted to employees, directors and executives under planned benefit plans. These
additional expenses will adversely affect our profitability. We cannot determine the actual amount of these new
stock-related compensation and benefit expenses at this time because applicable accounting practices generally
require that they be based on the fair market value of the options or shares of common stock at the date of the grant;
however, we expect them to be material. We will recognize expenses for our employee stock ownership plan when
shares are committed to be released to participants’ accounts and will recognize expenses for restricted stock awards
and stock options generally over the vesting period of awards made to recipients. The cost of the first year benefit
plan was $29,000. Additional benefit plans are anticipated to be approved after one year from the conversion date
and the expense of them have not been calculated at this time.

Issuance of shares for benefit programs may dilute your ownership interest.

We intend to adopt an equity incentive plan one year following the offering. If shareholders approve the
new equity incentive plan, we intend to issue shares to our officers, employees and directors through this plan. If the
restricted stock awards under the equity incentive plan are funded from authorized but unissued stock, your
ownership interest in the shares could be diluted by up to approximately 2.91%, assuming awards of common stock
equal to 3% of the shares sold in the offering are awarded under the plan. If we adopt the equity incentive plan more
than one year after completion of the offering, we may elect to increase the awards of restricted stock we may grant.
In such event, your ownership interest in the shares could be further diluted. If the shares issued upon the exercise
of stock options under the equity incentive plan are issued from authorized but unissued stock, your ownership
interest in the shares could be diluted by up to approximately 9.09%, assuming stock optlon grants equal to 10% of
the shares sold in the offering are granted under the plan.

The articles of incorporation and bylaws of Madison Bancorp, Inc. and certain laws and regulations may
prevent or make more difficult certain transactions, including a sale or merger of Madison Bancorp, Inc.

Provisions of the articles of incorporation and bylaws of Madison Bancorp, state corporate law and federal
banking regulations may make it more difficult for companies or persons to acquire control of Madison Bancorp.
As a result, our shareholders may not have the opportunity to participate in such a transaction and the trading price
of our common stock may not rise to the level of other institutions that are more vulnerable to hostile takeovers.
The factors that may discourage takeover attempts or make them more difficult include:
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Articles of incorporation and bylaws. Provisions of the articles of incorporation and bylaws of Madison
Bancorp may make it more difficult and expensive to pursue a takeover attempt that the board of directors
opposes. These provisions also make more difficult the removal of current directors or management, or the
election of new directors. These provisions include:

e limitation on the right to vote shares;

¢ the election of directors to staggered terms of three years;

e provisions regarding the timing and content of shareholder proposals and nominations;
®  provisions restricting the calling of special meetings of shareholders;

¢ the absence of cumulative voting by shareholders in the election of directors;

¢ the removal of directors only for cause; and

* supermajority voting requirements for changes to some provisions of the articles of incorporation
and bylaws. :

Maryland anti-takeover statute. Under Maryland law, any person who acquires more than 10% of a
Maryland corporation without prior approval of its board of directors is prohibited from engaging in any
type of business combination with the corporation for a five-year period. Any business combination after
the five-year period would be subject to supermajority shareholder approval or minimum price
requirements.

Office of Thrift Supervision regulations. Office of Thrift Supervision regulations prohibit, for three years
following the completion of a mutual-to-stock conversion, the offer to acquire or the acquisition of more
than 10% of any class of equity security of a converted institution without the prior approval of the Office
of Thrift Supervision.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable
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Item 2. Properties

We conduct our business through our main office, and our branch offices. The following table sets forth
certain information relating to these facilities at March 31, 2011.

Approximate Net Book
Year Square Owned/ Value at
Location Opened Footage Leased March 31, 2011
Main Office:
Administrative Headquarters
8615 Ridgely’s Choice Drive, Suite 111
Baltimore, Maryland 2011 6,317 Leased (1) $0
Branch Offices:
Perry Hall Branch
9651 Belair Road
Baltimore, Maryland 1997 4,800 Owned 1,285,575
Gardenville Branch
5415 Belair Road
Baltimore, Maryland 2006 2,500 Owned 1,582,553
Fallston Branch
2209 Belair Road
Fallston, Maryland 2002 2,250 Leased (2) 603,882
Bel Air Branch
126 N. Main Street 2009 3,600 Leased (3) 84,083

Bel Air, Maryland

(1) Lease expires August 31, 2021.

(2) Madison Square Federal Savings Bank acquired the Fallston Branch subject to a land lease. At termination of the land lease,
the property reverts to the landlord. The lease expiration date is 2040, assuming the extension of all renewal options under
the Jease available to the Bank.

(3) Lease expires October 31, 2013; there is one five year renewal available which if exercised, would extend the lease term
until October 31, 2018. :

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Periodically there have been various claims and lawsuits against us, such as claims to enforce liens,
condemnation proceedings on properties in which we hold security interests, claims involving the making and
servicing of real property loans and other issues incident to our business. We are not a party to any pending legal
proceeding that we believe would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows.

PART II

Item 4. [Removed and Reserved]

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholders Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Madison Bancorp, Inc.’s common stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “MDSN.”
The common stock was issued at a price of $10.00 per share in connection with the Bank’s mutual to stock
conversion and the initial public offering of the Company’s common stock. The common stock commenced trading
on the OTC Bulletin Board on October 6, 2010. As of March 31, 2011, there were approximately 200 shareholders
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of record, not including the number of persons or entities whose stock is held in nominee or “street” name through
various brokerage firms and banks.

Presented below is the high and low trade information for Madison’s common stock for the periods presented.
The over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or
commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions. Information has been obtained from the
NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc. The Company has not declared or paid cash dividends.

Price Range Per Share

Quarter Ended Low High

March 31, 2011 $10.40 $11.00
December 31, 2010 10.00 10.75
September 30, 2010 N/A N/A
June 30, 2010 N/A N/A

The Company did not repurchase any of its common stock during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011.

The Company is subject to Maryland law, which generally permits a corporation to pay dividends on its
common stock unless, after giving effect to the dividend, the corporation would be unable to pay its debts as they
become due in the usual course of its business or the total assets of the corporation would be less than its total
liabilities. Dividend payments by the Company depend primarily on dividends received by the Company from the
Bank. The payment of cash dividends on capital stock by a savings institution is limited by OTS regulations. We
may not make a distribution that would constitute a return of capital during the three-year term of the business plan
submitted in connection with our reorganization. No insured depository institution may make a capital distribution
if, after making the distribution, the institution would be undercapitalized.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The summary consolidated financial information presented below is derived in part from our consolidated
financial statements. The following is only a summary and you should read it in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and notes beginning on page 64. The information at March 31, 2011 and 2010 and for the years
then ended is derived in part from the audited consolidated financial statements of Madison Bancorp, Inc. that
appear elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Selected Consolidated Financial Condition Data

At March 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010
Financial Condition Data:

TOLAL ASSELS 1vvvrveeveriererscseee e ses oo eeeese e ee e s esese s es e eesarese e $ 153,991 $146,889
Cash and cash equivalents .........c.cocoocoenno 8,183 13,355
Investment securities available-for-sale............c.ccovvnivnieeinnncnncceeeeeeeenes 52,625 33,481
Investment securities held-to-Maturity........cccococerieriieiireeeree e 0 2,284
L0ans 1eceivable, NET........ccoovoviviviiieiietieceeeeieteee ettt 86,178 90,336
DIEPOSIES <. vvvvevveeesssesssesseseeeeseseee s e e es e ese e e e s eesene 139,518 136,965
TOtAL EQUILY c.vevieeieireetr ettt ettt e e eee e e e et e e e s et e e e eeeeaeaarenn 13,639 9,063

Selected Operations Data

For the Year Ended March 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010
Operating Data:
Interest revenue $ 6,101 $6,353

INterest EXPENSe .........cocveveurererreriririeenicireeneee s 2,260 3,022
Net interest income 3,841 3,331
Provision for loan losses 235 242
Net interest income after provision for loan 10SSES ............cooeveiveeiiviccrecrieeen. 3,607 3,089
NONINtEIESE TEVENUE (J0SS) .e.viveureerieeirireeresieeeete it e e ete e eeeeseeseteteeeeeeeeeeesaeneas 420 C))
INONINIEIESE EXPEIISES ..cuvevievereriiectiieiesietese ettt st te e e te e et tens et et e e ee e nenes ’ 4,084 3,940
L0SS befOre INCOME tAXES...ccvoierieieieiiericietectee ettt st 57) (855)
Net loss (57) (855)

At or For the Year Ended

March 31,

2011 2010
Performance Ratios (1): i
REtUIN ON AVEFAZE ASSELS ...vivvevievitieteeeee ettt ettt es s e eenes 0.04)% - (0.59%
Return on average equity........oooceercreriorneereenees ittt (0.50) (9.17)
Interest rate SPIEAd (2) .....ccivverueieeieeetii et eeee et sttt 2.52 2.24
Net INtereSt MATZIN (3).eu.iieecreeieeeieeeeteee et eee ettt s e e e e eae s e enes 2.65 2.39
Noninterest eXpenses to AVETage ASSELS .....c.eererviuirierereeiarisierisesessereieeeeeeeeeseesseeens 2.69 2.71
Average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing liabilities.... 108.09 106.71
Average equity t0 AVEIAZE ASSELS....c.cuiuiirirrrrrierieieireniieieieeetetee et beteee e e eneeenenenas 7.56 6.41
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At or For the Year Ended

March 31,

2011 2010
Regulatory Capital Ratios:
Total risk-based capital (to risk-weighted assets).......covvecvrvivererriirsiereceereeerenne 16.68% 12.26%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) .........cocvvveevirieeeirieiiiseieeieiisee e 15.93 11.53
Tier 1 capital (to adjusted total assets) 7.77 6.07
Asset Quality Ratios:
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total 10ans.........ccecvevrvereeeiiriennieeerinnen 0.73 0.67
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of nonperforming 10ans..........c.ccccceevrenenne. 6,955.62 88.96
Net charge-offs to average outstanding loans during the period.......c..cocoeeeennee. 0.23 0.02
Nonperforming loans as a percent of total 10ans..........c.ccoevvivrreeneneeienessceeaenes 0.01 0.75
Nonperforming assets as a percent of total assets 0.34 0.49
Other Data:
Number of OFfICES......cuiiiiiiiiiri e 5 5
Number of depOSit ACCOUNLS .....c.cveeeririeiieeieieesteeee et ere et s s e e 6,245 6,687
INUMDBETL OF LOANS ....eeeveeeeiiiecieiie ettt ettt a et sa e s e 989 1,122

(1) With the exception of end of period ratios, all ratios are based on average daily balances during the periods.

(2)  Represents the difference between the average yield on average interest-earning assets and the average cost on average
interest-bearing liabilities.

(3)  Represents net interest income as a percent of average interest-earning assets.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Operating Strategy

Background. For many years, we have operated as a traditional savings and loan association, attracting
deposits and investing those funds primarily in residential mortgage loans and investment securities. Several years
ago, primarily due to our small size relative to our fixed costs and to market interest rate increases which increased
our cost of funds faster than we were able to increase yields on our assets, we began to experience net operating
losses. Recognizing our need to adapt to current and future changing market conditions, our Board of Directors
initiated a search process to recruit an executive officer that could be an agent for change, and in January 2008 we
hired Michael Gavin as our new Chief Executive Officer, and in April 2008 we hired Ronald Ballard to serve as our
Executive Vice President-Commercial Lending.

Operating Strategy. With the addition of Mr. Gavin and Mr. Ballard, we developed a strategy to return to
profitability and position Madison Square Federal Savings Bank for eventual growth. Our objective is to build on
our historic strengths of customer loyalty, residential mortgage lending, low cost deposits, high asset quality, and
gradually grow our balance sheet with assets and liabilities that allow us to increase our net interest margin while
reducing our exposure to risk from interest rate fluctuations. Our operating strategy includes the following:

. building on our strengths as a community-oriented financial institution;

. growing our balance sheet by in.creasing commercial real estate and commercial business loans;

. emphasizing lower cost core deposits to maintain low funding costs;

. controlling noninterest expenses;

. adding a new branch in our existing market area or a contiguous county within the next three
years; and

27



. expanding our market share within our primary market area.
Building on our strengths as a community-oriented financial institution

We have operated continuously as a community-oriented financial institution since we were established in
1870. We are committed to meeting the financial needs of the communities in which we operate, and we are
dedicated to providing quality personal service to our customers. We provide a broad range of consumer and
business financial services through our network of branches and will continually seek out ways to improve
convenience, safety and service through our product offerings.

Over the years, we have developed a core of loyal customers, and our product mix concentrating on
savings, checking and time deposits and residential real estate mortgage loans have allowed us to generate low cost
deposits while maintaining strong asset quality. We intend to continue to retain these strengths while gradually
growing our balance sheet with assets and liabilities that allow us to increase our net interest margin while reducing
our exposure to risk from interest rate fluctuations.

Growing our balance sheet by increasing commercial real estate and commercial business loans

With the addition of Messrs. Gavin and Ballard, we revised our strategic plan. Our strategic plan calls for
us to grow our balance sheet by emphasizing assets and liabilities that allow us to increase our net interest margin
while reducing our exposure to risk from interest rate fluctuations.

With respect to our assets, our strategy has been, and continues to be, to increase the percentage of assets
invested in commercial and commercial real estate loans, which tend to have higher yields than traditional single-
family residential mortgage loans and which have shorter terms to maturity or adjustable interest rates. We intend to
continue to emphasize residential lending, while also seeking to expand our commercial real estate and commercial
business lending activities with a focus on serving small businesses and emphasizing relationship banking in our
primary market area. See “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our Business — Our increased focus on commercial
real estate lending and commercial business lending may expose us to increased lending risks.” We intend to
leverage the pre-existing banking relationships of Messrs. Gavin and Ballard to seek out new commercial real estate
and commercial lending opportunities.

Commercial real estate and commercial business loans provide us with the opportunity to earn more
income because they tend to have higher interest rates than residential mortgage loans. In addition, these loans are
beneficial for interest rate risk management because they typically have shorter terms and adjustable interest rates.
There are many commercial properties and businesses located in our market area, and with the additional capital
raised in the offering we intend to pursue the larger lending relationships associated with these opportunities. To
facilitate our growth, we have added expertise in our commercial loan department through the addition of Mr.
Ballard. Our commercial real estate loans have increased from $10.6 million, or 11.8% of total loans, at March 31,
2009 to $12.2 million, or 14.0% of total loans, at March 31, 2011. In addition, commercial loans have increased
from $3.1 million, or 3.4% of total loans, at March 31, 2009 to $5.0 million, or 5.7% of total loans, at March 31,
2011.

With respect to liabilities, our strategy is to emphasize transaction and money market accounts, as well as
certificates of deposit of various terms. We value these types of deposits because they represent longer-term
customer relationships and a lower cost of funding compared to longer-term certificates of deposit. We aggressively
seek transaction and money market deposits through competitive products and pricing and targeted advertising. In
addition, we offer business checking accounts for our commercial customers.

Emphasizing lower cost core deposits to maintain low funding costs

We seek to increase net interest income by controlling costs of funding rather than maximizing asset yields
because originating loans with high yields often involves greater credit risk. As a traditional thrift institution, a
greater percentage of our deposit accounts have been higher balance, higher costing certificates of deposits. Over
the past several years, we have sought to reduce our dependence on traditional high cost deposits in favor of stable
low cost demand deposits. We have utilized additional product offerings, technology and a focus on customer
service in working toward this goal. We had no brokered deposits during the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.

28



Controlling noninterest expenses

Because of the competitive environment in which we operate and the resultant pressures on our interest rate
margin, it is important that we work to control noninterest expenses. Noninterest expenses increased by $144,000,
or 3.7%, from $3.9 million for the year ended March 31, 2010 to $4.1 million for the year ended March 31, 2011.
There was an increase in salaries and employee benefits of $40,000, or 2.1%, an increase in occupancy and
equipment expense of $46,000, or 4.3%, and an increase in professional services of $35,000, or 28.2% mostly
related to increased audit and legal expense since becoming a public company for the year ended March 31, 2011
compared to the year ended March 31, 2010.

Adding a new branch in our existing market area or a contiguous county within the next three years

We intend to add a new branch in our existing market area or a contiguous county within the next three
years, although we have no current plans or commitments regarding a specific additional branch office.

Expanding our market share within our primary market area

We intend to expand our market share in our primary market area through enhancing the efforts of our staff
in marketing additional products and services to our customers. We believe that we have a solid infrastructure in
place that will allow us to grow assets and liabilities without adding materially to our noninterest expenses.

Overview

Revenue. Our primary source of pre-tax revenue is net interest income. Net interest income is the
difference between interest revenue, which is the income that we earn on our loans and investment securities, and
interest expense, which is the interest that we pay on our deposits. Other significant sources of pre-tax revenue are
service charges (mostly from service charges on deposit accounts). We also recognize income from the sale of
securities.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for possible losses
inherent in the loan portfolio. We evaluate the need to establish allowances against losses on loans on a quarterly
basis. When additional allowances are necessary, a provision for loan losses is charged to earnings.

Expenses. The noninterest expenses we incur in operating our business consists of salaries and employee
benefits expenses, occupancy and equipment expenses, federal deposit insurance premiums and Office of Thrift
Supervision assessments, data processing expenses, professional services, stationery and postage expenses and other
miscellaneous expenses. Our non-interest expenses are likely to increase as a result of expenses of shareholder
communications and meetings and expenses related to additional accounting, reporting and legal services related to
being a public company.

Salaries and employee benefits expenses consist primarily of salaries, wages and bonuses paid to our
employees, payroll taxes and expenses for health insurance, retirement plans and other employee benefits.
Following the offering, Madison adopted an Employee Stock Ownership Plan which had a first year expense of
$29,000. We anticipate adopting additional benefit plans one year after the offering date. We cannot determine the
actual amount of these new stock-related compensation and benefit expenses at this time because applicable
accounting practices require that they be based on the fair market value of the shares of common stock at spemflc
points in the future.

Occupancy and equipment expense, which are the fixed and variable costs of buildings and equipment,
consist primarily of depreciation charges, rental expenses, furniture and equipment expenses, maintenance, real
estate taxes and costs of utilities. Depreciation of premises and equipment is computed using a combination of
accelerated and straight-line methods based on the useful lives of the related assets, which range from three to 40
years.

Professional services include the fees that we pay to our outside accountants, legal expenses and other
consultants.
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Federal deposit insurance premiums are payments we make to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
for insurance of our deposit accounts. Office of Thrift Supervision assessments are semi-annual assessments we pay
to our primary regulator.

Data processing expenses are the fees we pay to third parties for processing customer information, deposits
and loans.

Other expenses include expenses for insurance, and other miscellaneous operating expenses.

Critical Accounting Policies

We consider accounting policies involving significant judgments and assumptions by management that
have, or could have, a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets or on income to be critical accounting
policies. The following represent our critical accounting policies:

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is the amount estimated by management as
necessary to cover losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. The allowance is established
through the provision for loan losses, which is charged to income. Determining the amount of the allowance for
loan losses necessarily involves a high degree of judgment. Among the material estimates required to establish the
allowance are: loss exposure at default; the amount and timing of future cash flows on impacted loans; value of
collateral; and determination of loss factors to be applied to the various elements of the portfolio. All of these
estimates are susceptible to significant change. Management reviews the level of the allowance monthly and
establishes the provision for loan losses based upon an evaluation of the portfolio, past loss experience, current
economic conditions and other factors related to the collectability of the loan portfolio. Although we believe that we
use the best information available to establish the allowance for loan losses, future adjustments to the allowance may
be necessary if economic or other conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the
evaluation. In addition, the Office of Thrift Supervision, as an integral part of its examination process, periodically
reviews our allowance for loan losses and may require us to recognize adjustments to the allowance based on its
judgments about information available to it at the time of its examination. A large loss could deplete the allowance
and require increased provisions to replenish the allowance, which would adversely affect earnings. See note 6 of
the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Fair Value of Investments. Securities are characterized as available for sale or held to maturity based on
management’s ability and intent regarding such investment at acquisition. On an ongoing basis, management must
estimate the fair value of its investment securities based on information and assumptions it deems reliable and
reasonable, which may be quoted market prices or if quoted market prices are not available, fair values extrapolated
from the quoted prices of similar instruments. Based on this information, an assessment must be made as to whether
any decline in the fair value of an investment security should be considered an other-than-temporary impairment and
recorded in non-interest revenue as a loss on investments. The determination of such impairment is subject to a
variety of factors, including management’s judgment and experience. See note 4 of the notes to the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Assets. Total assets increased from $146.9 million at March 31, 2010 to $154.0 million at March 31, 2011.
The increase was primarily due to an increase in investment securities available-for-sale, which were partially offset
by decreases in cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable, and investment securities held-to-maturity which were
transferred to investments available-for-sale at the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2011.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $5.1 million, or 38.7%, from $13.4

million at March 31, 2010 to $8.2 million at March 31, 2011, as excess liquidity was invested in investment
securities.
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March 31,

2011 2010
Cash and due from banks $ 882,209 $ 734,146
Federal funds sold 172,818 1,019
FHLB overnight deposits 1,107,552 1,197,832
Federal Reserve Bank balances 6,020,577 11,421,978
Total $ 8,183,156 $ 13,354,975

Loans. Our primary lending activity is the origination of loans secured by real estate. Our loans secured
by real estate consist primarily of residential mortgage loans and, to a lesser extent, commercial real estate loans.
We also originate land loans, lines of credit, and residential construction loans. Our non-real estate loans consist of
consumer loans and commercial loans.

Net loans receivable decreased by $4.1 million, or 4.6%, from $90.3 million at March 31, 2010 to $86.2
million at March 31, 2011, primarily as a result of the net effect of a $5.3 million decrease in residential mortgage
loans, a $374,000 decrease in consumer loans, a $220,000 decrease in residential construction loans, and a $70,000
decrease in multifamily loans offset by a $717,000 increase in land loans, a $557,000 increase in commercial real
estate loans, a $349,000 increase in home equity lines of credit and a $207,000 increase in commercial loans. The
decrease in residential mortgage loans was primarily a result of borrowers’ refinancing loans elsewhere and normal
principal reductions.

The largest portion of the loan portfolio consists of residential mortgage loans, which are loans secured by
single-family properties. Most of our residential mortgage loans are owner occupied, but this category also includes
loans secured by single-family investment properties. Residential mortgage loans totaled $57.6 million, or 66.4%,
and $62.9 million, or 69.2%, of the total loan portfolio, at March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The decrease in
residential mortgage loans was primarily a result of borrowers refinancing of loans elsewhere and normal principal
reductions.

Commercial real estate loans increased by $557,000, or 4.8%, from $11.6 million at March 31, 2010 to
$12.2 million at March 31, 2011. The increase in commercial real estate loans reflected our successful marketing
efforts as, with the addition of our new Executive Vice President — Commercial Lending in 2008, we have sought to
gradually increase our balances of commercial real estate loans in accordance with our strategic plan. At March 31,
2011, commercial real estate loans represented 14.0% of the total loan portfolio. We offer a variety of commercial
real estate loans to owner occupants and investors. Our commercial real estate lending is varied and includes loans
secured by office buildings, small retail buildings, warehouses and flex space.

Land loans increased by $717,000, or 14.8%, from $4.8 million at March 31, 2010 to $5.6 million at March
31,2011. The increase in land loans was primarily due to the origination of four loans secured by a total of 145
residential building lots and four commercial building lots. At March 31, 2011, land loans represented 6.4% of the
total loan portfolio.

Home equity lines of credit, which we just began marketing during the year ended March 31, 2010, totaled
$1.8 million, and represented 2.0% of total loans, at March 31, 2011, compared to $1.4 million, or 1.6% of total
loans, at March 31, 2010. The $349,000, or 24.8%, increase in home equity lines of credit at March 31, 2011 as
compared to March 31, 2010 resulted from our decision to begin offering a more competitive home equity line of
credit product during the year ended March 31, 2010.

Residential construction loans totaled $2.2 million, and represented 2.5% of total loans, at March 31, 2011,
compared to $2.4 million, or 2.6% of total loans, at March 31, 2010. The $220,000, or 9.2%, decrease in residential
construction loans at March 31, 2011 as compared to March 31, 2010 was due to decreases in lines of credit to local
builders and construction loans to homeowners. These loans to builders are primarily for pre-sold homes, although
we occasionally may originate a limited number of loans secured by spec units. ’

Our non-real estate secured loans consist of consumer loans and commercial loans. While we offer a
variety of consumer loans, we do not emphasize this type of lending and generally make consumer loans as an

accommodation to our existing customers. Consumer loans decreased by $374,000, or 31.1%, from $1-2 million at
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Loans secured by mortgages:
Residential:

Multifamily...

Commercial

Allowance for loan losses...

Loan Maturity

Commercial...........couo.........

CONSUMET.......eoueeeisrieieeeee e

Loans receivable, NEt ........coeeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo

The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio at the dates indicated.

March 31, 2010 to $829,000 at March 31, 2011. The decrease was due to the general run off of the consumer
portfolio, as we do not emphasize this type of lending.

Our commercial loans generally are secured by equipment and receivables, although in rare cases may be
unsecured, and include operating lines of credit. Commercial loans totaled $5.0 million, representing 5.7% of total
loans, at March 31, 2011, compared to $4.8 million, or 5.2% of total loans, at March 31, 2010.

At March 31,
2011 2010
Amount Percent Amount Percent
$ 57,608,257 66.42% $ 62,875,699 69.23%
1,667,385 1.92 1,736,944 1.91
12,154,376 14.02 11,597,811 12.77
5,566,059 6.42 4,849,495 5.34
1,756,463 2.03 1,407,436 1.55
2,175,906 2.51 2,395,528 2.64
80,928,446 93.32 84,862,913 93.44
828,925 0.96 1,203,106 1.32
4,962,980 5.72 4,755,553 5.24
86,720,351 100.00% 90,821,572 100.00%
93,682 119,903
(635,535) (605,000)
$ 86,178,498 $ 90,336,475

The following table sets forth certain information at March 31, 2011 regarding the dollar amount of loan
principal repayments becoming due during the periods indicated. The table does not include any estimate of
prepayments which significantly shorten the average life of all loans and may cause our actual repayment experience
to differ from that shown below. Demand loans having no stated schedule of repayments and no stated maturity are

reported as due in one year or less.

At March 31, 2011

Amounts due in:
One year or less
More than one to two years
More than two to three years
More than three to five years
More than five to ten years
More than ten to fifteen years
More than fifteen years

Total

Continued

Amounts due in:
One year or less
More than one to two years
More than two to three years
More than three to five years
More than five to ten years
More than ten to fifteen years
More than fifteen years

Total

1-4 Single Multi- Home

Family family Commercial Equity Lines

Residential Residential Mortgages Land of Credit
$112,385 $0 $ 1,600,000 $ 3,689,969 $ 348,542
336,830 0 117,838 650,460 83,302
299,388 0 0 496,969 23,849
1,149,158 0 481,753 681,969 71,931
16,401,442 0 1,486,744 46,692 1,228,839
7,043,172 1,182,386 1,690,378 0 0
32,265,382 484,999 6,777,663 0 0
$ 57,608,257 $ 1,667,385 $12,154,376 $ 5,566,059 $ 1,756,463

Commercial not Consumer not
Residential secured by secured by
Construction Real Estate Real Estate Total

$ 1,775,906 $ 3,596,382 $ 116,101 $ 11,239,285
0 660,917 158,436 2,007,783
0 165,241 227,119 1,213,066
0 168,609 327,269 2,880,689
0 371,831 0 19,535,548
0 0 0 9,915,936
400,000 0 0 39,928,044
$ 2,175,906 $ 4,962,980 $ 86,720,351

$ 828,925 .
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Fixed vs. Adjustable Rate Loans
The following table sets forth the dollar amount of all loans at March 31, 2011 that are due after March 31,
2012, and that have either fixed interest rates or floating or adjustable interest rates. The amounts shown below

exclude unearned loan origination fees.

Floating or

Adjustable
At March 31, 2011 Rates Fixed Rates Total
Amounts due in:
More than one to two years $ 1,030,599 $977,184 $ 2,007,783
More than two to three years 520,817 692,249 1,213,066
More than three to five years 414,946 2,465,743 2,880,689
More than five to ten years 1,228,838 18,306,710 19,535,548
More than ten to fifteen years 1,583,033 8,332,903 9,915,936
More than fifteen years 10,777,604 29,150,440 39,928,044
Total $ 15,555,837 $ 59,925,229 $ 75,481,066

Most of our adjustable rate loans contain floor rates. Some adjustable rate loan products contain floor rates
equal to the initial interest rate on the loan. When market interest rates fall below the floor rate, as has occurred in
recent periods, loan rates do not adjust further downward.

Loan Activity

The following table shows loans originated, purchased and sold during the periods indicated.

Year Ended March 31,
2011 2010
Total loans at beginning of period..........c.coeiveviiriirvreeceseeeee $90,821,572 $ 89,638,794
Loans originated:
Loans secured by mortgages:
Residential:
1-4 FamilY ..o s 3,957,651 7,935,606
Multifamily .... 0 0
COMMEITIAL ...vviveeiieeiectietieie ettt enes 837,847 4,855,103
Loand oo 1,949,310 1,465,625
967,647 1,042,991
Residential CONSIIUCION .......evvveervieeeiieieceie ettt ceeeeeeee e een 2,214,255 0
) 9,926,710 15,299,325
CONSUIMET 1.vinv ettt ettt et es e stt et e re st seteeeeeneeseneeeeeenenenene 290,870 370,633
COMMIEICIAL ........oiiiieiiee et eae e 1,519,135 5,013,455
Total loans originated...........covvvvvverieerienesieeereeceeee e 11,736,715 20,683,413
Loans purchased..........ccoocveeeiieiiieeciecccee et 149,062 1,439,541
Deduct:
Loan principal repayments...........ccoeeeieerreenaieei et (14,425,103) (18,219,380)
Loan sales .........c.ccecvvvnennn.n. (1,356,270) (2,704,222)
Loan charge-offs, net ... (205,625) (16,574)
Net loan activity................. (4,101,221) 1,182,778
Total loans at end of period..........cccceeiviiiiiriiinieceeeeee e $ 86,720,351 $ 90,821,572

Loan originations come from a number of sources. The primary sources of loan originations are contacts
with our loan officers, existing customers, walk-in traffic, referrals from customers, and to a lesser extent,
advertising.

Loan sales consist primarily of the sale of participation interest in certain commercial and construction
loans that are in excess of our regulatory loans-to-one-borrower limit. In those instances where we originate loans in
amounts that exceed our loans-to-one borrower limit, we sell participation interests in such loans to other local
banks. During the year ended March 31, 2011, the amount of loans sold decreased by $1.3 million, or 50.0%,
primarily as the result of the origination of fewer loans in excess of our regulatory loans-to-one-borrower limit.
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Occasionally, on a very selective basis, we have purchased participation interests in commercial real estate
loans to supplement our loan portfolio. We purchase loan participations solely from a very limited number of other
local banks we know well, and the loans must be secured by properties located in our market area. We underwrite
participation interests using the same underwriting standards for loans that we originate for our portfolio. At March
31,2011, our purchased participation interests totaled $4.5 million. We do not purchase whole loans.

One loan participation we own is a pool of loans made in low to moderate income areas of Baltimore City.
Our portion of these loans was approximately $1.3 million at March 31, 2011. The majority of the remaining
purchases relate to four loans, one to a church, one for a strip shopping center, one for two flex-use buildings, and
one commercial land loan, all in our market area.

Securities. At March 31, 2011, we had $52.6 million of securities available-for-sale, consisting of U.S.
government securities, certificates of deposit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, mortgage-
backed securities issued by Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae as well as nonagency
mortgage-backed securities, sometimes referred to as “private label” mortgage-backed securities. Our securities
portfolio is used to invest excess funds for increased yield and manage interest rate risk.

Our available-for-sale securities increased by $19.1 million, or 57.2%, from $33.5 million at March 31,
2010 to $52.6 million at March 31, 2011. The increase in available-for-sale securities is the result of purchases of
$44.5 million of U.S. Agency mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations and brokered
certificates of deposit which were partially funded by the proceeds from the mutual to stock conversion, and the
redeployment of available cash and cash equivalents. We also transferred the remaining securities in the held-to-
maturity portfolio to the available-for-sale portfolio. The increase in available-for-sale securities were partially
offset by $18.8 million of securities being called, having matured, or repayments and $7.3 million of sales of
selected securities. Before the transfer to the available-for-sale portfolio, our held-to-maturity securities decreased
by $1.1 million, or 46.7%, to $1.2 million at December 31, 2010, the transfer date, from $2.3 million at March 31,
2010. The decrease in the held-to-maturity securities reflects repayments on mortgage-backed securities of
$394,000 and the sales of certain securities of $688,000. Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale securities and
held-to-maturity securities were $7.3 million and $688,000 during the year ended March 31, 2011, resulting in gross
gains of $237,000 and gross losses of $84,000, respectively. At March 31, 2011, we also held a $243,000
investment in the common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. A portion of this investment is
required in order to collateralize borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. We hold no stock in
Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac and have not held stock in these entities throughout the periods presented.

During the period of April 1* through June 16, 2011, the Company took advantage of market conditions
and divested all of the non-agency collateralized mortgage obligations as well as other available-for-sale agency
mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. We sold securities with a fair market value of
$8.1 million and recognized gains of $163,000 and losses of $157,000.
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The following table sets forth the amortized costs and fair values of our investment securities at the dates

indicated.
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment securities available-for-sale:
U.S. government agencies ........................ $ 10,233,047 $ 10,155,307 $ 6,105,334 $ 6,115,666
Brokered certificates of deposit................ 4,785,434 4,776,597 2,670,966 2,664,541
Mortgage-backed securities (Agency)...... 33,117,844 33,016,462 24,404,801 24,700,462
Collateralized mortgage obligations

(AZENCY) ceiiiiiieiieeeeeeee e, 4,475,445 4,486,526 0 . 0
Collateralized mortgage obligations

(NON-agency) ......cccvereeeuereeneeaenraeeecnne 263,109 190,077 0 0

Total....cccooiviiiiireeeceeeee, $ 52,874,879 $ 52,624,969 $33,181,101 $ 33,480,669

Investment securities held-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities (Agency) ...... $ 375,965 $ 373,217
Collateralized mortgage obligations

(ABENCY) cveeiieiie et 801,928 832,447
Collateralized mortgage obligations

(NOD-agency).....ccceeeeeevvveeveeeeeeeeen 1,105,814 1,017,625

Total ..o $ 2,283,707 $2,223289

The following table sets forth the stated maturities and weighted average yields of investment securities at
March 31, 2011. Certain mortgage-backed securities have adjustable interest rates and will reprice annually within
the various maturity ranges. These repricing schedules are not reflected in the table below. Weighted average yield
calculations on investments available for sale do not give effect to changes in fair value that are reflected as a
component of equity.

March 31, 2011
One Year After 1 to After 5 to After 10
(Dollars in thousands) or Less 5 Years 10 Years Years Total
Investment securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Government agencies .
Estimated Fair value $0 $3,622 $ 2,053 $ 4,480 $ 10,155
Amortized cost 0 3,650 2,056 4,527 10,233
Yield 0% 0.87% 2.20% 1.24% 1.30%
Brokered certificates of deposit
Estimated Fair value $1,922 $2,855 $0 $0 $4,777
Amortized cost 1,919 2,866 0 0 4,785
Yield 1.00% 1.10% 0% 0% 1.06%
Mortgage-backed securities — agency
Estimated Fair value $338 $791 $4,441 $ 27,446 $ 33,016
Amortized cost 333 777 4,358 27,650 33,118
Yield 4.10% 3.03% 3.18% 2.84% 2.90%
Collateralized mortgage-backed obligations (Agency) o
Estimated Fair value $0 $14 $ 765 $3,708 $ 4,487
Amortized cost 0 14 766 3,696 4,476
Yield 0% 4.50% 1.09% 0.96% 0.99%
Collateralized mortgage-backed obligations (Nonagency)
Estimated Fair value $1 $0 $0 $189 $190
Amortized cost ] 3 0 0 260 263
Yield 0.54% 0% ) 0% 2.36% 2.36%
Total Investment Securities:
Estimated Fair value $ 2,261 $7,282 $7,259 $ 35,823 $ 52,625
Amortized cost 2,255 7,307 7,180 36,133 52,875
Yield 1.46% 1.20% 2.67% 2.44% 2.26%
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At March 31, 2011, we did not have any security (other than U.S. government agency securities) that
exceeds 10% of our total equity at that date.

Ground Rent. Ground rents represent the value of long-term leases with respect to land we own
underlying residential properties. Our balance in ground rents decreased by $23,000 from $477,000 at March 31,
2010 to $454,000 at March 31, 2011, as we intend to let our portfolio of ground leases run off over time as the
homeowners redeem leases. The majority of the decrease was from charging off uncollectible ground rents.

Deposits. We accept deposits primarily from individuals and businesses who are located in our primary
market area. We rely on competitive pricing, customer service, account features and the location of our branch
offices to attract and retain deposits. Deposits serve as the primary source of funds for our lending and investment
activities. Interest-bearing deposit accounts offered include savings accounts, individual NOW accounts, money
market accounts and certificates of deposit. Non-interest-bearing accounts consist of free checking and commercial
checking accounts. Total deposits increased by $2.6 million to $139.5 million at March 31, 2011 from $137.0
million at March 31, 2010. Balances of noninterest-bearing deposits remained unchanged at $5.3 million at March
31, 2011 and 2010. Interest-bearing deposits increased by $2.6 million to $134.3 million at March 31, 2011
compared to $131.7 million at March 31, 2010. The majority of the increase was in certificates of deposits which
increased by $2.2 million from $101.1 at March 31, 2010 to $103.3 at March 31, 2011.

The following table sets forth average balances and average rates of our deposit products for the periods
ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.

March 31,
2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate
Noninterest-bearing: )
Demand $ 5,969,868 4.27% 0.00% $ 5,010,505 3.70% 0.00%
Interest-bearing:
NOW 2,791,213 2.00 0.11 2,637,691 1.95 0.22
Money Market 5,884,898 4.21 0.66 5,752,307 4.25 0.81
Savings 22,178,913 15.87 0.26 21,757,041 16.08 045
Time 102,955,301 73.65 2.10 100,133,785 74.02 2.87
$ 139,780,193 100.00 1.69 $ 135,291,329 100.00 2.32

Time deposits of $100,000 or more included in time above, were $43.9 million and $36.6 million at March
31,2011 and 2010, respectively. '

During the year ended March 31, 2011, average balances in non-interest-bearing deposits increase
$959,000 or 19.15%. Interest-bearing deposits increased by $ 3.5 million, or 2.71%, from $130.3 million at March
31, 2010 to $133.8 million at March 31, 2011, as we experienced deposit inflows from customers seeking the
security of FDIC-insured deposits in a time of turmoil in the financial markets and from our newest branch office in
Bel Air, Maryland opened in August 2008.

The following table indicates the amount of certificates of deposit with balances of $100,000 or greater by
time remaining until maturity as of March 31, 2011, none of which are brokered deposits.

Maturity Period Amount
Three months or [eSS ....coevvevevevenenannee. $ 2,818,060
Over three through six months............... 4,837,244
Over six through twelve months............. 13,779,624
Over twelve months ........c.cccoevevveeeeeeeenn. 22,497,534
Total ..o $ 43,932,462
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The following table sets forth time deposits classified by rates at the dates indicated.

March 31
2011 2010
Less than 1% $ 12,833,523 $ 2,163,716
1.00% to 1.99% 37,184,601 38,452,331
2.00 % to 2.99% 45,363,102 35,997,292
3.00% to 3.99% 3,469,505 10,827,069
4.00% to 4.99% 4,478,346 13,349,819
5.00% to 5.99% , 0 306,884
$ 103,329,077 $ 101,097,111

The following table sets forth the amount and maturities of time deposits at March 31, 2011.

Percentage
Over One Over Two Over Three Over Four of Total
Less Than Year to Two Years to Years to Years to Total Time Time
One Year Years Three Years Four Years Five Years Deposits Deposits
Less than 1% $12,318,543 $ 514,980 $0 $0 $0 $ 12,833,523 12.42%
1.00% to 1.99% 22,444,900 8,636,637 5,236,248 63,988 802,828 37,184,601 35.99
2.00 % to 2.99% 17,953,564 18,541,348 3,271,438 3,417,355 2,179,397 45,363,102 43.90
3.00% to 3.99% 624,127 392,134 2,453,244 0 0 3,469,505 3.36
4.00% to 4.99% 833,424 892,211 2,752,711 0 0 4,478,346 4.33
$ 54,174,558 $ 28,977,310 $ 13,713,641 $ 3,481,343 $ 2,982,225 $ 103,329,077 100.00

The following table sets forth deposit activity for the periods indicated.

Year Ended March 31,

2011 2010
Beginning Balance ..........ccocaiieeirieiiieee e $ 136,965,267 $ 129,581,391
Increase (decrease) before interest credited 293,020 4,523,683
INterest CIEAIEd ....oviivieeiieiecrieee et te et sre e enee e e 2,260,069 2,860,193
Net increase (decrease) in dePOSItS......ccoeveereccrireriecenrecrenninesrcecreeenas 2,553,089 7,383,876
Ending Balance .........cccccoveieirininieceiec et $ 139,518,356 $ 136,965,267

Borrowings. We are permitted to use borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta and
repurchase agreements to supplement our supply of funds for loans and investments and for interest rate risk
management. The Bank also has a line of credit available from a large financial institution. We had no borrowings
at March 31, 2011 or 2010.

Equity. Equity increased by $4.6 million, or 50.5%, to $13.6 million at March 31, 2011 as the result of the
successful completion of our mutual to stock conversion and concurrent stock offering in which we raised net
proceeds of $5.3 million. This was offset, in part, by a net loss of $57,000 for the year ended March 31,2011 and a
decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income (net of income taxes) in the amount of $311,000 for the year
ended March 31, 2011.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

Overview. Our net loss was $57,000 for the year ended March 31, 2011, compared to a net loss of
$855,000 for the year ended March 31, 2010. The results for 2011 included improvements in many categories
including an increase in net interest income and gains on sales of available-for-sale securities.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income increased to $3.8 million for the year ended March 31, 2011 as
compared to $3.3 million for the year ended March 31, 2010, due to a decrease in the cost of funds for deposits,
partially offset by a decrease in balances and yield on earning assets. Our interest rate spread was 2.52% for the
year ended March 31, 2011 compared to 2.24% for the year ended March 31, 2010 and our net interest margin
increased to 2.65% for the year ended March 31, 2011 from 2.39% for the year ended March 31, 2010.
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Interest on loans decreased by $53,000 to $5.0 million for the year ended March 31, 2011 from $5.1
million for the year ended March 31, 2010 due to a $5.3 million decrease in residential mortgage loans as a result of
customers refinancing of loans elsewhere and normal principal reductions. The average balance of loans decreased
by $820,000 to $88.7 million for the year ended March 31, 2011 from $89.6 million for the year ended March 31,
2010 as a result of a decrease in residential mortgage loans offset by an increase in other lending categories. The
average yield on loans decreased to 5.64% for the year ended March 31, 2011 from 5.65% for the year ended March
31, 2010 due to a change in loan mix.

Interest on securities available-for-sale increased by $43,000 for the year ended March 31, 2011 as
compared to the year ended March 31, 2010, caused by a $10.1 million increase in the average balance of
investment securities available-for-sale offset by a 74 basis point decrease in the average yield. On December 31,
2010 the entire held-to-maturity investment portfolio of $1.2 million was transferred to available-for-sale. Before
the transfer to available-for-sale, the interest on securities held-to-maturity was $63,000 for the nine months ended
December 31, 2010 as compared to $307,000 for the full year ended March 31, 2010, due to a $1.0 million decrease
in the average balance.

Interest on interest-bearing due from banks was $49,000 for the year ended March 31, 2011 as compared to
$46,000 for the year ended March 31, 2010, as a result of an increase in the average yield from 0.25% for the year
ended March 31, 2010 to 0.31% for the year ended March 31, 2011 offset by a $2.6 million decrease in average
balances.

Interest on total deposits decreased to $2.3 million for the year ended March 31, 2011 from $3.0 million for
the year ended March 31, 2010, due to a 63 basis point decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing deposits
offset by a $3.5 million increase in the average balance of interest-bearing deposits. Interest on certificates of
deposits decreased $711,000 to $2.2 million for the year ended March 31, 2011 as a result of the decrease in average
cost of deposits offset by an increase in average balances of $2.8 million. Interest on savings deposits decreased
$40,000 to $57,000 for the year ended March 31, 2011 as a result of the decrease in average cost of deposits offset
by an increase in average balances of $422,000. Interest on NOW and money market deposit accounts decreased by
$12,000 to $41,000 for the year ended March 31, 2011 due to a decrease in the average cost of the deposits offset by
an increase in average balances of $286,000.
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Average Balance and Yields. The following table for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 presents
information regarding average balances of assets and liabilities, the total dollar amounts of interest income and
dividends from average interest-earning assets, the total dollar amounts of interest expense on average interest-
bearing liabilities, and the resulting average yields and costs. The yields and costs for the periods indicated are
derived by dividing income or expense by the average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods
presented. Average balances have been calculated using daily balances. Amortization of net deferred loan fees is
included in interest income on loans and is insignificant. Nonaccruing loans have been included in the table as loans
carrying a zero yield. No tax-equivalent adjustments were made.

Year Ended March 31
2011 2010
Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost
Assets:
Interest-bearing balances due from banks............ $ 15,731,511 $ 49,370 0.31% $ 18,323,074 $45,772 0.25%
Investment securities available-for-sale.................. 38,138,437 952,424 2.50% 28,068,070 909,739 3.24%
Investment securities held-to-maturity............... 1,802,920 63,334 3.51% 2,813,390 306,696 10.90%
Loans receivable, net...............ccoeciniiiniin, 88,740,042 5,006,025 5.64% 89,560,501 5,058,579 5.65%
Other interest-earning assets...........ccoeeverernenen. 713,954 29,720 4.16% 728,741 31,975 4.39%
Total interest-earning assets.............ccevveieeeenennns 145,126,864 6,100,873 4.20% 139,493,776 6,352,761 4.55%
Noninterest-€arning assets............coeveuereeenennnnnn 6,926,219 6,066,168
Total aSSELS. .. .ouverne e $ 152,053,083 $ 145,559,944
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Time deposits............viieiiiiiin e $ 102,955,301 2,161,861 2.10% $ 100,133,785 2,872,860 2.87%
SAVINGS. .. ovniiiiii i 22,178,913 57,077 0.26% 21,757,041 97,039 0.45%
NOW and money market accounts..................... 8,676,111 40,623 0.47% 8,389,998 52,127 0.62%
Total interest-bearing deposits.............c........ 133,810,325 2,259,561 1.69% 130,280,824 3,022,026 2.32%
Other interest-bearing liabilities....................... 454,031 43 0.01% 436,815 89 0.02%
Total interest-bearing liabilities..................... 134,264,356 2,259,604 1.68 % 130,717,639 3,022,115 2.31%
Noninterest-bearing deposits.............ccceeunennee 5,969,868 : 5,010,505
Other noninterest-bearing liabilities................. 325,213 504,880
Total liabilities............cccooeiveiiniiiiiiienn, 140,559,437 136,233,024
Total shareholders’ equity..........c..coeeeeeeniennnee. 11,493,646 9,326,920
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity.......... $ 152,053,083 $ 145,559,944
Net interest INCOME............ovuiiriiniinaeriinannane, $ 3,841,269 $ 3,330,646
Interest rate spread..........oovvvvvreiiiiiniiniinenin. 2.52% B 2.24%
Net interest margin.........cocoeveieeeueriennnnennn 2.65% 2.39%
Average interest-earning assets to average 7

interest-bearing liabilities........................ . Co 108.09% . 106.71%

e Average loan balances include nonaccrual loans. i
e For presentation in this table, balances and the corresponding average rates for investment securities are based upon historical cost, adjusted
for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts.
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RatelVolume Analysis. The following table presents the dollar amount of changes in interest income and
interest expense for the major categories of our interest-earning assets and liabilities. Information is provided for
each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities with respect to (1) changes in volume, which
is the change in volume multiplied by the prior year rate, and (2) changes in rate, which is the change in rate
multiplied by the prior year volume. The combined effect of changes in both rate and volume has been allocated
proportionately to the change due to volume and the change due to rate.

Years Ended March 31, Years Ended March 31,
2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009
Increase (Decrease) Total Increase (Decrease) Total
Due to Increase Due to Increase
(Dollars in thousands) Yolume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)
Interest-earning assets:

Interest-bearing balances due from banks $ 4 $8 $4 $3434 $(3,502) $ (68)
Investment securities available-for-sale 118 (76) 42 81 (176) 95)
Investment securities held-to-maturity (84) (159) (243) 152 103 255
Loans receivable, net (46) 6) (52) 338 21) 317
Other interest-earning assets [¢)) 2) 3 1 ) 4)
Total interest-earning assets a7 (235) (252) 4,006 (3,601) 405

Interest-bearing liabilities: .
Time deposits 83 (795) (712) 868 (1,266) (398)
Savings deposits 2 42) (40) 3 (123) (120)
Now and Money market accounts 2 (13) (11) 23 (66) (43)
Total interest-bearing deposits 87 (850) (763) 894 (1,455) (561)
Other interest-bearing liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total interest-bearing liabilities 87 (850) (763) 894 (1,455) (561)
Change in net interest income $ (104) $ 615 $511 $3,112 $(2,146) $ 966

Provision for Loan Losses. We maintain an allowance at a level necessary to absorb management’s best
estimate of probable loan losses in the portfolio. Management considers, among other factors, historical loss
experience, type and amount of loans, borrower concentrations and current conditions of the economy. In addition,
the allowance considers the level of loans which management monitors as a result of inconsistent repayment
patterns. Management has identified commercial real estate loans as an area for expected increased lending. Such
loans carry a higher degree of credit risk than our historical single-family lending.

Our provision for loan losses decreased from $242,000 for the year ended March 31, 2010 to $235,000 for
the year ended March 31, 2011. At March 31, 2011, the allowance for loan losses was $636,000, or 0.73% of the
total end of period loan portfolio, compared to $605,000, or 0.67% of the total end of period loan portfolio, at March
31, 2010. Nonaccrual loans amounted to $9,000, of 1-4 family residential mortgages at March 31, 2011 and
$680,000 of primarily residential construction at March 31, 2010. ‘

Management also reviews individual loans for which full collectability may not be reasonably assured and
considers, among other matters, the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. This evaluation is ongoing and
results in variations in our provision for loan losses.

Net loan charge-offs amounted to $204,000 during the year ended March 31, 2011, compared to $17,000
during the year ended March 31, 2010. The 2011 charge-offs were comprised of $32,000 of single family residential
mortgages and $174,000 for a 14 unit apartment building transferred to OREO during the second quarter.

Although management utilizes its best judgment in providing for losses, there can be no assurance that they
will not have to change its allowance for loan losses in subsequent periods. Management will continue to monitor
the allowance for loan losses and make additional provisions to the allowance as appropriate.

An analysis of the changes in the allowance for loan losses, non-performing loans and classified loans is

presented under “—Risk Management—Analysis of Nonperforming and Classified Assets” and “—Risk
Management—Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for Loan Losses.”
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Noninterest Revenue. Noninterest revenue increased for the year ended March 31, 2011 to $420,000 as
compared to $(4,000) for the year ended March 31, 2010. The increase during the 2011 period was primarily due to
the gain on sale of certain non-agency and available-for-sale securities of $153,000 and increased fee income from
the sale of non-deposit products. In addition, the results for the year ended March 31, 2010 included an other-than-
temporary-impairment charge of $283,000.

Noninterest Expenses. Noninterest expense increased by $144,000 or 3.7% from $3.9 million for the year
ended March 31, 2010 to $4.1 million for the year ended March 31, 2011, primarily due to increases in salaries and
employee benefits, occupancy and equipment expenses, and professional services expenses, which were partially
offset by decreases in data processing expenses, and stationary and postage.

Income Tax Expense. For the years ended March 31, 2011, and 2010 we incurred no income tax expense.
At March 31, 2011, we had a net operating loss carry-forward totaling approximately $990,000, which expires in
2030 and 2031. We also had a capital loss carry-forward of approximately $566,000, which expires in 2014. We
have established a valuation allowance to reflect uncertainty as to our ability to realize our deferred tax asset. See
Note 13 of notes to consolidated financial statements.

Risk Management

Overview. Managing risk is an essential part of successfully managing a financial institution. Our most
prominent risk exposures are credit risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Credit risk is the risk of not collecting the
interest and/or the principal balance of a loan or investment when it is due. Interest rate risk is the potential
reduction of interest income as a result of changes in interest rates. Market risk arises from fluctuations in interest
rates that may result in changes in the values of financial instruments, such as available-for-sale securities that are
accounted for on a mark-to-market basis. Other risks that we face are operational risk, liquidity risks and reputation
risk. Operational risks include risks related to fraud, regulatory compliance, processing errors, technology and
disaster recovery. Liquidity risk is the possible inability to fund obligations to depositors, lenders or borrowers.
Reputation risk is the risk that negative pubhc1ty or press, whether true or not, could cause a decline in our customer
base or revenue.

Credit Risk Management. Our strategy for credit risk management focuses on having well-defined credit
policies and uniform underwriting criteria and providing prompt attention to potential problem loans. We do not
offer, and have not offered, sub- -prime or no-documentation mortgage loans or Alt-A mortgage loans.

When a borrower fails to make a required loan payment, we take a number of steps to have the borrower
cure the delinquency and restore the loan to current status. When the loan becomes 15 day past due, a late notice is
sent to the borrower. When the loan becomes 30 days past due, a more formal letter is sent. Between 15 and 30
days past due, telephone calls are also made to the borrower. After 30 days, we regard the borrower in default. At
60 days delinquent, the borrower may be sent a letter from our attorney and we may commence collection
proceedings. If a foreclosure action is instituted and the loan is not brought current, paid in full, or refinanced before
the foreclosure sale, the real property securing the loan generally is sold at foreclosure. Generally, when a consumer
loan becomes 60 days past due, we institute collection proceedings and attempt to repossess any personal property
that secures the loan. Management informs the board of directors monthly of the amount of loans delinquent more
than 30 days, all loans in foreclosure and repossessed property that we own.

Analysis of Nonperforming and Classified Assets. We consider repossessed assets and loans that are 90
days or more past due to be non-performing assets. Loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status when they
become 90 days delinquent, at which time the accrual of interest ceases and the allowance for any uncollectible
accrued interest is established and charged against interest revenue. Typically, payments received on a nonaccrual
loan are first applied to the outstanding principal balance. In addition, we consider certain non-agency mortgage-
backed securities as nonperforming due to ratings downgrades and cash flow concerns.

Real estate that we acquire as a result of foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is classified as real
estate owned until it is sold. When property is acquired it is recorded at the lower of its cost, which is the unpaid
balance of the loan, or estimated fair market value at the date of foreclosure. Any holding costs and declines in
estimated fair value after acquisition of the property result in charges against income.
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The following table provides information with respect to our non-performing assets at the dates indicated.

At March 31,
2011 2010
Non-accrual loans:
Loans secured by mortgages:
Residential:
1-4 £amily .ooeeeeieee e $9,137 $72,297
Multifamily......cocoecereririeeienee e 0 0
ComMETCIal .......ccoiiiiiii et 0 0
Land. ..o e 0 0
Lines of Credit......ccooeieeeiee e 0 0
Residential CONStIUCION ....couveuererieeiecieeriieteer e 0 607,815
9,137 680,112
CONSUINET ...ttt 0 0
ComMMETCIaAl ....oviiiiieeieie e 0 0
TOLAL ..o e 9,137 680,112
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more:
Loans secured by mortgages:
Residential:
1-4 family ..cooooiiiiiicirc e 0 0
Multifamily......coooeeeeieiiee e 0 0
CommMmErcial ........ocveuieieerieieeeeee e 0 0
Land. ... 0 0
Lines of Credit........ocoiecerieiiinicinne e 0 0
Residential CONSIIUCHION ....ccveviveriiieierienere e 0 0
Subtotal 0 0
CONSUITIET ....veneeieieicee ettt ettt e bt 0 0
Commercial .......cocooeiieiiieee e 0 0
TOtAL ... 0 0
Total of nonaccrual and 90 days or
more past dUue 10ANS .......ccccereeieriiciiiiiie e 9,137 680,112
Other real estate OWNEd ..........coocveeeeeiiciieeiiecieceee e 434,000 0
Other nonperforming assets..........cooeeereierieninienvnesessseeerereennes 84,832 40,574
Total NOnPerforming assSets .......ccvrvververerreeereeereeseeeearerenns 527,969 720,686
Troubled debt reStructurings. .........c.ccecveveieiveiineeie e e 0 0
Troubled debt restructurings and
total nONPerforming asSets..........coovvvverireerieririeriresienrseseenesenens $ 527,969 $ 720,686
Total nonperforming loans to total 10ans..........cceccocoeiieicnirennnnne. 0.01% 0.75%
Total nonperforming loans to total assets.........c.ccoveveeeeneieneaanes 0.01% 0.46%
Total nonperforming assets and troubled
debt restructurings to total aSSEtS........ccvvvererveeeeiererieniaeeieeene 0.34% 0.49%

At March 31, 2011, nonaccrual loans consisted of two residential mortgage loans that are part of a
participation pool of loans in low to moderate income areas of. Baltimore City. The original balance on the loans was
$16,000 and after $7,000 of charge-offs, the current balance is $9,000 which we expect to recover from the lead
bank.
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At March 31, 2010, nonaccrual loans consisted of a participation interest of $608,000 in a total loan of
approximately $2.7 million for the rehab and sale of an historic building consisting of 14 for sale units in Baltimore
City. The loan was originated in August 2007, and our initial exposure on the loan was $707,000. The loan was
secured by the property and a cash deposit in the amount of $379,000 of which our portion was $99,000, that was
held by the lead bank which was subsequently applied to principal. Other security for the loan inchided the
guarantee of the corporate borrower and the personal guarantees of the three principals.

In the quarter ending September 30, 2010, we charged-off $174,000 of this loan and transferred its net
realizable value of $434,000 to Other Real Estate Owned. For further information on our methodology for
establishing specific valuation allowances, see “—Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for Loan Losses —
Specific Valuation Allowance.”

Also included in non-accrual loans at March 31, 2010 were three residential mortgage loans totaling
$72,000.

We occasionally modify loans to extend the term to help borrowers stay current on their loan and
to avoid foreclosure. At March 31, 2011, we had four 1-4 single family mortgage loans totaling approximately
$895,000 that we had modified the terms either by extending the term or increasing the payments to allow the
customer to become current. We did not forgive any principal or interest, or modify the interest rates on the loans.
All of these four modified loans were current at March 31, 2011. At March 31, 2011 and 2010, we did not have any
modified loans that were considered troubled debt restructurings. .

At March 31, 2011, we had $434,000 of other real estate owned; we had no real estate owned at March 31,
2010. The other nonperforming assets at March 31, 2011 and 2010 were ground rents and certain non-agency
mortgage-backed securities.

Interest income that would have been recorded as of the year ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 had non-
accrual loans been current according to their original terms, amounted to approximately $1,000 and $23,000,
respectively. Interest income of $13,000 related to non-accrual loans was included in interest income for the year
ended March 31, 2010.

Classified Assets. Federal regulations require us to review and classify our assets on a regular basis. In
addition, the Office of Thrift Supervision has the authority to identify problem assets and, if appropriate, require
them to be classified. There are three classifications for problem assets; substandard, doubtful and loss.
“Substandard assets” must have one or more defined weakness and are characterized by the distinct possibility that
we will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. “Doubtful assets” have the weaknesses of
substandard assets with the additional characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the
basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values questionable, and there is a high possibility of loss. An asset
classified “loss” is considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuance as an asset of the institution is
not warranted. The regulations also provide for a “special mention” category, described as assets which do not
currently expose an institution to a sufficient degree of risk to warrant classification but do possess credit
deficiencies or potential weaknesses deserving close attention. When we classify an asset as substandard or doubtful
we may establish a specific allowance for loan losses. If we classify an asset as loss, we charge off an amount equal
to 100% of the portion of the asset classified loss.

The following table shows the aggregate amounts of our classified and criticized assets at the dates indicated.

At March 31,
2011 2010
Special mention assets...........c..oceeuvereenene $3,515,028 $ 1,470,465
Substandard asSets ...........ccoevevevriereriiennn ) . 847,638 - 720,686
Doubtful assets ........ccocveeeveveecirieiieireerinne 0 13,157
0SS aSSetS .....ccovieeeiivnreecniree e, e 0. -0
Total classified and criticized assets..... $ 4,362,666 $ 2,204,308
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Classified and criticized assets include loans that are classified due to factors other than payment
delinquencies, such as lack of current financial statements and other required documentation, insufficient cash flows
or other deficiencies, and, therefore are not included as non-performing assets. Other than as disclosed in the above
tables, there are no other loans where management has serious doubts about the ability of the borrowers to comply
with the present loan repayment terms. Also included in classified and criticized assets are delinquent ground rents
(that have a specific reserve) and certain non-agency mortgage-backed securities that have experienced rating
downgrades or cash flow deficiencies.

At March 31, 2011, we had $3.5 million of special mention loans which were not currently classified as
non-accrual, 90 days past due, restructured or impaired but where known information about possible credit
deficiencies of borrowers caused management to have concerns as to the ability of the borrowers to comply with
present loan repayment terms. Included in this category were $968,000 in residential real estate loans that have
experienced some delinquency, a $47,000 commercial loan that was previously delinquent and is now performing, a
$668,000 commercial loan that is performing, three commercial real estate loans totaling $1.2 million that are
performing, a land loan of $497,000 that is performing, and a residential construction loan of $107,000 that is
performing.

Of the $848,000 of substandard assets at March 31, 2011, $9,000 were non-accrual residential mortgage
loans, $85,000 was an accruing residential mortgage and $235,000 was an accruing residential construction loan
with a special valuation reserve of $70,000. The other real estate owned property of $434,000 is also included as
part of the substandard assets as well as $12,000 of ground rents and $72,000 of non-agency mortgage-backed
securities.

Delinquencies. The following table provides information about delinquencies in our loan portfolio at the
dates indicated.

At March 31,
2011 2010
30-89 Days - 90 Days or More 30-89 Days 90 Days or More

Number Principal  Number Principal Number Principal Number Principal

Of Balance Of Balance Oof Balance of Balance

Loans of Loans Loans of Loans Loans of Loans Loans of Loans

Loans secured by mortgages:
Residential:

1-4 Single family................... 11 $ 707,958 2 $9,137 12 $ 1,649,606 3 $ 72,297
Multifamily ......ccccovevrvrnvennnnn, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial........c..ccoveevevnennnen. 1 393,545 0 0 0 0 0 0
Land...coocovviveeieeiecieeeecee, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lines of credit............ccveeune.... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Residential construction........... 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 607,815
12 1,101,503 2 9,137 12 1,649,606 4 680,112
CONSUMET ....ccuvicvveeveeeeeeeeren. 2 7,427 0 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial.........c.cocovveveennene. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total...cooovvreeieeeiieceeein 14 $ 1,108,930 2 $9,137 12 $ 1,649,606 4 $ 680,112

Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for Loan Losses

directors also reviews the allowance for loan losses established on a quarterly basis.

The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio.
We evaluate the need to establish allowances against losses on loans on a quarterly basis. When additional
allowances are necessary, a provision for loan losses is charged to earnings. Our methodology for assessing the
appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses is reviewed periodically by the board of directors. The board of

General Valuation Allowance. We establish a general valuation allowance for loans that should be
adequate to reserve for the estimated credit losses inherent in each segment of our loan portfolio, given the facts and
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based on our average annual rate of net charge offs experienced over the previous three years on each segment of the
portfolio and is adjusted for current qualitative factors. If historical loss data is not available for a segment, the
estimates used will be based on various components such as industry averages. For purposes of determining the
estimated credit losses, the loan portfolio is segmented as follows: (i) residential real estate loans (single-family); (ii)
commercial real estate loans; (iii) commercial loans (secured); (iv) commercial loans (unsecured and leases); and (v)
consumer loans. Qualitative factors that are considered in determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses
are as follows: (i) trends of delinquent and non-accrual loans; (ii) economic factors; (iii) concentrations of credit;
(iv) changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio; and (v) changes in lending staff and loan policies.

Specific Valuation Allowance. All adversely classified loans meeting the following loan balance
thresholds are individually reviewed: (i) residential loans greater than $100,000; (ii) commercial real estate loans
and land loans greater than $50,000; (iii) consumer loans greater than $25,000; and (iv) all other commercial loans.
Any portion of the recorded investment in excess of the fair value of the collateral that can be identified as
uncollectible is charged off against the allowance for loan losses.

We establish a specific allowance for loan losses for 100% of the assets or portions thereof classified as
loss. The amount of the loss will be the excess of the recorded investment in the loan over the fair value of
collateral estimated on the date that a probable loss is identified. Management obtains updated appraisals with
respect to loans secured by real estate.

All other adversely classified loans as well as special mention and watch loans are monitored monthly. Our
historical loss experience in each category of loans is utilized in determining the allowance for that group. The loss
history will be based on the average actual loss sustained from the sale of real estate owned. If we have not
experienced any losses in a particular category, the factor will be determined from either the loss history of a
reasonably similar category or the peer group industry average. The determined loss factor in each loan category
may be adjusted for qualitative factors as determined by management.

At March 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no loans that were delinquent or restructured or modified as the
result of being a “sub-prime” loan or a loan underwritten with limited or no documentation.

Unallocated Valuation Allowance. Our allowance for loan losses methodology also includes an
unallocated component to reflect the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the
methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the loan portfolio.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category at the dates
indicated. The allocation of the allowance to each category is not necessarily indicative of future losses and does
not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any category.

2011 2010
Allowance % of Allowance % of
for Loan Allowance for Loan  Allowance
Loan Losses to Total Loan Losses to Total
Balance Amount Allowance Balance Amount Allowance
Loans secured by mortgages:
Residential:
1-4 Single family $ 57,608,257 $185,114 29.13% $ 62,875,699 $197,534 32.66%
Muitifamily 1,667,385 17,417 2.74 1,736,944 19,355 3.20
Commercial 12,154,376 141,331 22.24 11,597,811 138,562 22.90
Land 5,566,059 73,355 11.54 4,849,495 62,884 10.39
Lines of credit 1,756,463 8,441 1.33 1,407,436 8,048 - 1.33
Residential Construction 2,175,906 95,779 15.07 2,395,528 80,432 13.29
80,928,446 521,437 82.05 84,862,913 506,815 83.77
Consumer 828,925 5,848 0.92 1,203,106 9,088 1.50
Commercial 4,962,980 63,745 10.03 4,755,553 57,908 '9.57
K $ 86,720,351 591,030 93.00 $90,821,572 573,811 -94.84
Unallocated 44,505 7.00 31,189 5.16
Total Allowance for loan losses $ 635,535 100.00 $ 605,000 100.00
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- Although we believe that we use the best information available to establish the allowance for loan losses,
future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary and our results of operations could be
adversely affected if circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the determinations.
Furthermore, while we believe we have established our allowance for loan losses in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles, there can be no assurance that the Office of Thrift Supervision, in reviewing our
loan portfolio, will not require us to increase our allowance for loan losses. The Office of Thrift Supervision may
require us to increase our allowance for loan losses based on judgments different from ours. In addition, because
future events affecting borrowers and collateral cannot be predicted with certainty, there can be no assurance that the
existing allowance for loan losses is adequate or that increases will not be necessary should the quality of any loans
deteriorate as a result of the factors discussed above. Any material increase in the allowance for loan losses may
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operation.

Analysis of Loan Loss Experience. The following table sets forth an analysis of the allowance for loan
losses for the periods indicated.

At or for the
Year Ended March 31,
2011 2010
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of period $ 605,000 $ 379,500
Provision for 10an 10SSES ............cvvvrieerrerireinieieieetieiccs ettt 234,519 242,074
Recoveries:
Loans secured by mortgages:
Residential:
1-4 single family ........cccccoovrrrreirrt e 1,641 0
Multifamily .............. e 0 0
Commercial........ 0 0
Land ..ottt na 0 0
Lines Of Credil.......cccoviiiiiiieieieieie ettt ettt s 0 0
Residential construction.............ccceeveeenenene. e e e seesaneaten 0 0
1,641 0
0 0
0 0
1,641 0
Charge-offs:
Loans secured by mortgages:
Residential:
1-4 single family ........cooeiiiinirii e 31,810 16,574
Multifamily ........... 0 0
Commercial........ 0 0
Land................ ’ 0 0
. Lines of credit.... 0 0
Residential CONSIIUCHION. ....c.covvovieiiveirieeeieresir ettt 173,815 0
205,625 16,574
CONSUITIET ..ottt ettt en bbbt eas e s et s e s s etssns s et et s e enenne 0 0
Commercial ................. 0 0
Total CHATGE-0fTS....ecveieieceeceeceee ettt 205,625 16,574
NEL Charge-0ffs .....c.cevimeeiireeei et 203,984 16,574
Allowance for loan losses at end of PEriod .........vvververereireveceneeeeeeeeereeee e $ 635,535 $ 605,000
Allowance for loan losses to nON-performing l0ans..................oo.ovvrvveeverereeesnenes 6,955.62% 88.96%
Allewance for loan losses to total loans outstanding at the end of the period 0.73% 0.67%
Net charge-offs (recoveries) to average loans outstanding during the period.......... 0.23% 0.02%

Interest Rate Risk Management. We manage the interest rate sensitivity of our interest-bearing liabilities
and interest-earning assets in an effort to minimize the adverse effects of changes in the interest rate environment.
Deposit accounts typically react more quickly to changes in market interest rates than mortgage loans because of the
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shorter maturities of deposits. As a result, sharp increases in interest rates may adversely affect our earnings while
decreases in interest rates may beneficially affect our earnings. To reduce the potential volatility of our earnings, we
have sought to improve the match between asset and liability maturities and rates, while maintaining an acceptable
interest rate spread. Our strategy for managing interest rate risk emphasizes adjusting our loan mix by adding more
loans with variable rates and adjusting our investment portfolio mix and duration. We currently do not participate in
hedging programs, interest rate swaps or other activities involving the use of derivative financial instruments.

We have an Asset/Liability Management Committee, which includes members of management selected by
the board of directors, to communicate, coordinate and control all aspects involving asset/liability management. The
committee establishes and monitors the volume, maturities, pricing and mix of assets and funding sources with the
objective of managing assets and funding sources to provide results that are consistent with liquidity, growth, risk
limits and profitability goals.

Our goal is to manage asset and liability positions to moderate the effects of interest rate fluctuations on net
interest and net income.

Net Portfolio Value Analysis. We currently use the net portfolio value analysis prepared by the Office of
Thrift Supervision to review our level of interest rate risk. This analysis measures interest rate risk by capturing
changes in net portfolio value of our cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, based on a range
of assumed changes in market interest rates. Net portfolio value represents the market value of portfolio equity and
is equal to the market value of assets minus the market value of liabilities, with adjustments made for off-balance
sheet items. These analyses assess the risk of loss in market risk-sensitive instruments in the event of a sudden and
sustained 100 to 300 basis point increase or 100 basis point decrease in market interest rates with no effect given to
any steps that we might take to counter the effect of that interest rate movement.

The following table, which is based on information that we provide to the Office of Thrift Supervision,
presents the change in our net portfolio value at March 31, 2011 that would occur in the event of an immediate
change in interest rates based on Office of Thrift Supervision assumptions, with no effect given to any steps that we
might take to counteract that change.

Net Portfolio Value as % of
) Estimated Net Portfolio Value Portfolio Value of Assets
Change (in Basis Points) in Rates $ Amount _ $ Change % Change NPV Ratio _ BP Change

(Dollars in thousands)

300 $7978 $ (6,799) (46)% 5.37% (394)bp
200 10,539 (4,238) (29)% 6.93% (238)bp
100 12,903 (1,874) 13)% 8.29% (102)bp
0 14,777 0 0 % 9.31% Obp
(100) 16,070 1,293 9% 9.98% 67bp

The Office of Thrift Supervision uses various assumptions in assessing interest rate risk. These
assumptions relate to interest rates, loan prepayment rates, deposit decay rates and the market values of certain
assets under differing interest rate scenarios, among others. As with any method of measuring interest rate risk,
certain shortcomings are inherent in the methods of analysis presented in the foregoing table. For example, although
certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in different degrees
to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in
advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market
rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgage loans, have features that restrict changes in
interest rates on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. Further, if there is a change in interest rates,
expected rates of prepayments on loans and early withdrawals from certificates could deviate significantly from
those assumed in calculating the table. Prepayment rates can have a significant impact on interest income. Because
of the large percentage of loans and mortgage-backed securities we hold, rising or falling interest rates have a
significant impact on the prepayment speeds of our earning assets that in turn affect the rate sensitivity position.
When interest rates rise, prepayments tend to slow. When interest rates fall, prepayments tend to rise. Our asset
sensitivity would be reduced if prepayments slow and vice versa. While we believe these assumptions to be
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reasonable, there can be no assurance that assumed prepayment rates will approximate actual future mortgage-
backed security and loan repayment activity.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is the ability to meet current and future financial obligations of a short-term nature. Our primary
sources of funds available to meet short-term liquidity needs consist of deposit inflows, loan repayments and
maturities and sales of investment securities. While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities
are predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest
rates, economic conditions and competition. We regularly adjust our investments in liquid assets available to meet
short-term liquidity needs based upon our assessment of (i) expected loan demand, (ii) expected deposit flows, (iii)
yields available on interest-earning deposits and securities and (iv) the objectives of our asset/liability management
policy. We do not have long-term debt or other financial obligations that would create long-term liquidity concerns.

Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing deposits. The level of these assets
depends on our operating, financing, lending and investing activities during any given period. At March 31, 2011,
cash and cash equivalents totaled $8.2 million. Securities classified as available-for-sale, amounted to $52.6 million
after the Company transferred the total portfolio of the held-to-maturity securities of $1.2 million to the available-
for-sale portfolio at December 31, 2010. The interest-bearing deposits in banks of $483,000 at March 31, 2011,
provide additional sources of liquidity. Our liquidity has increased as customers have sought the safety of FDIC
insured deposits. In addition, at March 31, 2011, we had the ability to borrow a total of approximately $30.8 million
from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta and we have a $2.5 million line of credit with a large financial
institution. At March 31, 2011, we had no Federal Home Loan Bank-advances outstanding or borrowings on the
line of credit.

At March 31, 2011 we had $10.5 million in commitments to extend credit outstanding. Certificates of
deposit due within one year of March 31, 2011 totaled $54.2 million, or 52.4% of certificates of deposit. We believe
the large percentage of certificates of deposit that mature within one year reflects customers’ hesitancy to invest
their funds for long periods due to the recent low interest rate environment and local competitive pressures. If these
maturing deposits do not remain with us, we will be required to seek other sources of funds, including other
certificates of deposit and borrowings. Depending on market conditions, we may be required to pay higher rates on
such deposits or other borrowings than we currently pay on the certificates of deposit due on or before March 31,
2012. We believe, however, based on past experience that a significant portion of our certificates of deposit will
remain with us. We have the ability to attract and retain deposits by adjusting the interest rates offered.

The following table presents certain of our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2010.

Payments Due By Period
Over Over

One Year One to Threeto  More Than

Contractual Obligations Total or Less Three Years Five Years Five Years
Long-term debt obligations...........c...cccccvrvevevevirnenen. $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital lease obligations...........cccoceeeiuiriirinernninn, 0 0 0 0 0
Operating lease obligations............cceceeveveeeerernnnee. 3,181,827 247,010 574,822 614,577 1,745,418
Loan purchase obligations............cccoceuveveeevevennnne... 606,813 606,813 0 0 0

Other long-term liabilities reflected

on balance sheet..........cccoceveveiieiiicccceen 0 0 0 0 0
Total.....ooiiiicccr $ 3,788,640 $ 853,823 $574,822 $614,577  $1,745,418

Our primary investing activities are the origination of loans and the purchase of securities. Our primary
financing activity is the origination of deposit accounts. Deposit flows are affected by the overall level of interest
rates, the interest rates and products offered by us and our local competitors and other factors. We generally manage
the pricing of our deposits to be competitive. Occasionally, we offer promotional rates on certain deposit products
to attract deposits.
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Financing and Investing Activities

Capital Management. We are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the
Office of Thrift Supervision, including a risk-based capital measure. The risk-based capital guidelines include both
a definition of capital and a framework for calculating risk-weighted assets by assigning balance sheet assets and
off-balance sheet items to broad risk categories. At March 31,2011, we exceeded all of our regulatory capital
requirements and were considered “well capitalized” under regulatory guidelines.

The capital from our stock offering significantly increased our liquidity and capital resources. Over time,
the initial level of liquidity will be reduced as net proceeds from the stock offering are used for general corporate
purposes, including the funding of lending activities. Our financial condition and results of operations were
enhanced by the capital from the offering, resulting in increased net interest-earning assets and revenue. However,
the large increase in equity resulting from the capital raised in the offering will, initially, have an adverse impact on
our return on equity. Following the offering, we may use capital management tools such as cash dividends and
common share repurchases. However, under Office of Thrift Supervision regulations, we will not be allowed to
repurchase any shares during the first year following the offering, except to fund the restricted stock awards under
the equity benefit plan after its approval by shareholders, unless extraordinary circumstances exist, and we receive
regulatory approval.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. In the normal course of operations, we engage in a variety of financial
transactions that, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles are not recorded in our financial
statements. These transactions involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, interest rate, and liquidity risk. Such
transactions are used primarily to manage customers’ requests for funding and take the form of loan commitments,
unused lines of credit, and letters of credit. For information about our loan commitments, unused lines of credit, and
letters of credit, see note 9 of the notes to the audited consolidated financial statements contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

For the year ended March 31, 2011, we did not engage in any off-balance sheet transactions reasonably
likely to have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-2 amended accounting and disclosure guidance relating to a
creditor’s determination of whether a restructuring is a troubled debt restructuring. The amendments clarify the
guidance on a creditor’s evaluation of whether it has granted a concession and whether a debtor is experiencing
financial difficulties. The amendments are effective for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after June
15,2011 and should be applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual period of adoption. As a result of the
application of the amendments, receivables previously measured under loss contingency guidance that are newly
considered impaired should be disclosed, along with the related allowance for credit losses, as of the end of the
period of adoption. For purposes of measuring impairment of those receivables, an entity should apply the
amendments prospectively for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after June 15, 2011. The deferred
credit risk disclosure guidance issued in July 2010 relating to troubled debt restructurings will now be effective for
interim and annual periods beginning on or after June 15, 2011. The Company intends to comply with the new
accounting and disclosure requirements and we do not expect them to have a significant effect on our consolidated
financial statements

In July 2010, FASB issued ASU No. 2010-20, “Receivables (Topic 310)-Disclosures about the Credit
Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses” requires entities to provide disclosures
designed to facilitate financial statement users’ evaluation of (i) the nature of credit risk inherent in the entity’s
portfolio of financing receivables, (ii) how that risk is analyzed and assessed in arriving at the allowance for credit
losses, and (iii) the changes and reasons for those changes in the allowance for credit losses. Disclosures must be
disaggregated by portfolio segment, the level at which an entity develops and documents a systemic method for
determining its allowance for credit losses, and class of financing receivable, which is generally a disaggregation of
portfolio segment. The required disclosures include, among other things, a carry forward of the allowance for credit
losses as well as information about modified, impaired, nonaccrual and past due loans, and credit quality indicators.
ASU 2010-20 will become effective for financial statements as of March 31, 2011 as it relates to disclosures

49



required as of the end of the reporting period. Disclosures that relate to activity during a reporting period will be
required for financial statements that include periods beginning on January 1, 2011. Refer to “Note 5, Loans” and
“Note 6 Allowance for Loan Losses” for the required disclosures.

In April 2010, FASB issued ASU 2010-18, Receivables (Topic 310) — Effect of a Loan Modification When
the Loan Is Part of a Pool That Is Accounted for as a Single Asset — a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues
Task Force. As a result of the amendments in this ASU, modifications of loans that are accounted for within a pool
do not result in the removal of those loans from the pool even if the modification of those loans would otherwise be
considered a troubled debt restructuring. This ASU was effective for modifications occurring in the first interim or
annual period ending on or after July 15,2010. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. In addition, upon
initial adoption of the guidance in this ASU, an entity may make a one-time election to terminate accounting for
loans as a pool under Subtopic 310-30. Adoption of this guidance has not had a material impact on our consolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

In March 2010, FASB issued ASU No. 2010-11, “Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815)-Scope Exception
Related to Embedded Credit Derivatives” clarifies that the only form of an embedded credit derivative that is
exempt from embedded derivative bifurcation requirement are those that relate to the subordination of one
financial instrument to another. Entities that have contracts containing an embedded credit derivative feature
in a form other than subordination may need to separately account for the embedded credit derivative feature.
The provisions of ASU 2010-11 became effective on July 1, 2010. This standard did not have a material
impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In February 2010, FASB issued ASU 2010-09, Subsequent Events (Topic 855) — Amendments to Certain
Recognition and Disclosure Requirements. ASU 2010-09, among other things, removes the requirement for an SEC
filer to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated. Adoption of this guidance has not
had a material impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In February 2010, FASB issued ASU 2010-08, Technical Corrections to Various Topics. While none of the
provisions in the amendments in this ASU fundamentally change U.S. GAAP, certain clarifications to the guidance
on embedded derivatives and hedging (FASC Subtopic 815-15) may cause a change in the application of that
Subtopic. This ASU was effective for Madison on April 1, 2010. Adoption of this guidance has not had a material
impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In January 2010, FASB issued ASU No. 2010-06, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820)-
Improving Disclosures About Fair Value Measurements” requires expanded disclosures related to fair value
measurements including (i) the amounts of significant transfers of assets or liabilities between Levels 1 and 2 of the
fair value hierarchy and the reasons for the transfers, (ii) the reasons for transfers of assets or liabilities in or out of
Level 3-of the fair value hierarchy, with significant transfers disclosed separately, (iii) the policy for determining
when transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized and (iv) for recurring fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a gross presentation of information
about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements. ASU 2010-06 further clarifies that (i) companies should provide
fair value measurement disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities (rather than major category), which would
generally be a subset of assets or liabilities within a line item in the statement of financial position and
(i1) companies should provide disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for
both recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements for each class of assets and liabilities included in Levels 2
and 3 of the fair value hierarchy. ASU No. 2010-06 requires the disclosures related to the gross presentation of
purchases, sales, issuances and settlements of assets and liabilities included in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
beginning January 1, 2011. The remaining disclosure requirements and clarifications made by ASU 2010-06
became effective on January 1, 2010. Adoption of this ASU has not had and will not have a material impact on our
consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

- Accounting Standards Updates (ASU) No. 2009-16, “Transfers and Servicing (Topic- 860)-Accounting for
Transfers of Financial Assets” amends prior accounting guidance to enhance reporting about transfers of financial
assets, including securitizations, and where companies have continuing exposure to the risks related to transferred
financial assets. ASU 2009-16 also requires additional disclosures about all continuing involvement with transferred
financial assets including information about gains and losses resulting from transfers during the period. The
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provisions of ASU 2009-16 became effective on January 1, 2010 and did not have a significant impact on our
consolidated results of operations or financial position.

Effect of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and related financial data presented in this report have been prepared
according to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, which require the measurement of
financial positions and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering the change in the relative
purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The primary impact of inflation on our operations is
reflected in increased operating costs. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all the assets and liabilities of a
financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates generally have a more significant impact on a
financial institution’s performance than do general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the
same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

This item is not applicable as the Company is a smaller reporting company.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this item is included herein beginning on page 64.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, including the Company’s principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s “disclosure controls and
procedures,” as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”). Based upon their evaluation, the principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered
by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective for the purpose of
ensuring that the information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) (1) is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms, and (2) is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including
its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

(b) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management’s assessment
regarding internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of the Company’s
registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

(© Changes to Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the three

months ended March 31, 2011 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Directors

The board of directors of Madison Bancorp and Madison Square Federal Savings Bank are each comprised
of seven persons who are elected for terms of three years, approximately one-third of whom are elected annually.
The same individuals comprise the boards of directors of Madison Bancorp and Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank.

Information regarding the directors is provided below. Unless otherwise stated, each person has held his or
her current occupation for the last five years. Ages presented are as of March 31, 2011. The starting year of service
as a director relates to service on the board of directors of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank.

The following directors have terms ending in 2011:

Frederick L. Berk retired in 1982 as a self-employed builder of single-family homes in Baltimore and
Harford Counties. He also owned and operated Berk’s Restaurant in the 1980s. Mr. Berk served as a director on the
Board of Directors of the Belair Building and Loan Association prior to being elected to serve as director of the
Bank in 1981. Age 82.

Having lived and operated businesses in the greater Baltimore area his entire life, Mr. Berk has extensive
knowledge of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank’s market area. His previous experience as a builder and as a
business owner have provided him with expertise and leadership experience that is valuable to the Board of
Directors.

Michael P. Gavin has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank since January 2008, and as President and Chief Executive Officer of Madison Bancorp since its formation in
May 2010. Prior to that, Mr. Gavin was a founder and served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Bay Net
A Community Bank, Bel Air, Maryland, and its holding company, Bay Net Financial, Inc., from April 1999 until it
was sold to Sterling Financial Corporation in October 2006, after which he stayed on as President and Chief
Executive Officer of Bay First Bank, the successor to Bay Net A Community Bank, until January 2008. Mr. Gavin
has been in banking for over 30 years, having served in various bank management positions, including 20 years with
Atlantic Federal Savings Bank, Baltimore, Maryland, where he served as President from 1988 to 1995. Age 54.

‘Mr. Gavin’s over thirty years of banking experience have provided him with strong leadership and
managerial skills, as well as a deep understanding of the financial industry. Additionally, Mr. Gavin’s in-depth
knowledge of the market area in which Madison Square Federal Savings Bank and Madison Bancorp operate are
valuable to the Board of Directors and position him well as our President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer.

Mark J. Lax retired in 1985 as Vice President, Marketing of EASCO Corp., 2 hand tool manufacturing
company in Lancaster, Pennsylvania. Prior to that, he served from 1966 to 1976 as Vice President, Marketing of
Black & Decker, manufacturer of power tools and hardware and home improvement products based in Towson,
Maryland. From 1976 to 1979, he also owned and operated Braemer Press, Baltimore, Maryland, a commercial
printing company. Age 80.
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Mr. Lax has lived in Madison Square Federal Savings Bank’s market area for many years and has
developed extensive ties to the market area. Additionally, Mr. Lax’s previous experience as a small business owner
and as vice president of two other companies have provided him with leadership experience and expertise that is
valuable to the Board of Directors.

The following directors have terms ending in 2012:

Richard E. Funke has over 35 years of banking experience, having served as a founder and Chairman of
the Board of Bay Net Financial, Inc. and Bay Net A Community Bank, from their inception in January 2000 to their
sale in October 2006. Mr. Funke previously served as Vice Chairman of Susquehanna Bank of Maryland, a billion
dollar community bank headquartered in Towson, Maryland from 1995 to 1999. Mr. Funke retired in 1999. Prior to
Susquehanna Bank, Mr. Funke was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Atlanfed Bancorp, Inc., the holding
company for Atlantic Federal Savings Bank. Atlantic Federal Savings Bank, acquired by Susquehanna Bank in
1995, had approximately $250 million in assets and 10 branch locations. As Chief Executive Officer of Atlanfed
Bancorp, Inc., Mr. Funke was responsible for the overall managerial operation of Atlanfed Bancorp and Atlantic
Federal Savings Bank. Mr. Funke has been active in many charitable and civic organizations, including the Rotary
and American Community Bankers Association. Age 75.

Mr. Funke’s long tenure as a banking executive and service on financial institution boards in our market
area provides us with extensive leadership experience and expertise in the financial industry.

Melody P. Kline has served as Executive Vice President, Lending of Madison Square Federal Savings
Bank since May 2008. Ms. Kline joined Madison Square Federal Savings Bank in 1980, having served in various
leadership positions including Branch Manager, Assistant Vice President and Senior Vice President before
becoming Executive Vice President. Age 52.

Through her affiliation with the Bank for over 30 years, Ms. Kline brings in-depth knowledge and
understanding of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank’s history, operations and customer base. In addition, Ms.
Kline has been a resident of Madison Squar¢ Federal Savings Bank’s market area for many years and is an active
member of the community. Ms. Kline’s active involvement in the community has helped her establish a network of
contacts that greatly assists us in our marketing efforts.

The following directors have terms ending in 2013:

Clare L. Glenn began her position as Development Director at St. Casimir Catholic School in the Canton
area of Baltimore City in 2005. Previously she held the same position at St. Anthony of Padua School in
Gardenville. Age 64.

She was the managing editor of the Herald Gazette Newspaper in northeast Baltimore City for five years.
This position provided her with the opportunity to personally interact with area businesses, community
organizations, churches, schools and individuals in covering stories of interest to readers. Ms. Glenn has gained
extensive leadership experience throughout her career, which has made her a significant contributor to the Board.

David F. Wallace has been employed as Executive Chairman of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank
since January 2008 and as Chairman of Madison Bancorp since its formation in May 2010. Mr. Wallace has been in
banking for over 38 years, and began working at Madison Square Federal Savings Bank in 1978 as Senior Vice
President before he became President and Chief Executive Officer in 1980, a position he held until 2008, when he
became Executive Chairman. Age 69. -

Mr. Wallace’s extensive experience in the local banking industry and involvement in the communities
served by Madison Square Federal Savings Bank affords the Board valuable insight regarding the business and
operation of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank. Mr. Wallace’s extensive knowledge of all aspects of Madison
Square Federal Savings Bank’s business and customers position him well to serve as our Executive Chairman.
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Executive Officers

The executive officers of Madison Bancorp and Madison Square Federal Savings Bank are elected annually
by the board of directors and serve at the board’s discretion. The executive officers of Madison Bancorp and
Madison Square Federal Savings Bank are:

Name Position

David F. Wallace Executive Chairman of Madison Bancorp and
Madison Square Federal Savings Bank

Michael P. Gavin President and Chief Executive Officer of

Madison Bancorp and President and Chief
Executive Officer of Madison Square Federal

Savings Bank

Ronald E. Ballard Executive Vice President, Commercial Lending
of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank

Melody P. Kline Executive Vice President, Lending of Madison
Square Federal Savings Bank

Kay Webster Senior Vice President, Human Resources and

Corporate Secretary of Madison Square Federal
Savings Bank and Treasurer and Corporate
Secretary of Madison Bancorp

Paul A. Lovelace Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Madison Bancorp and Madison
Square Federal Savings Bank

Below is information regarding our other executive officers who are not also directors. Each individual has
held his or her current position for at least the last five years, unless otherwise stated. Ages presented are as of
March 31, 2011.

Ronald E. Ballard has been employed as Executive Vice President, Commercial Lending of the Bank since
April 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Ballard served as Executive Vice President, Business Services of Bay First Bank from
October 2006 until April 2008, and before that as Executive Vice President at BayNet A Community Bank from
January 2000 until October 2006. Previously, he was with Atlantic Federal Savings Bank for 20 years, serving as
Chief Loan Officer for 15 years, and has approximately 32 years of banking experience, including 25 years of
commercial lending experience in the Northeast Maryland market area. Age 57.

Kay Webster has served as Senior Vice President since May 2008, previously having served as Vice
President since May 2005, and has served as Corporate Secretary of the Bank since May 1997. Ms. Webster also
serves as Treasurer and Corporate Secretary of the Company. Age 64.

Paul A. Lovelace has been employed as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Madison
Bancorp and the Bank since J anuary 2011. Prior to that, Mr. Lovelace was previously employed by the Pension
Benefit Guaranty Corporation as staff accountant, from October 2010 through January 2011 and before that, Mr.
Lovelace served as Vice President and Assistant Controller at S & T Bank, Indiana, Pennsylvania from 2007
through 2010. Previously, Mr. Lovelace served as Vice President and Bank Controller at Susquehanna Bancshares,
Lititz, Pennsylvania from 1999 until 2007. Mr. Lovelace has approximately 27 years of banking experience. Age

56.

Corporate Governance

' The Company’s board of directors established separately-designated standing Audit, Compensation and
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees.

The Audit Committee consists of Richard E. Funke (Chairman) and Frederick L. Berk. The Audit

Committee is responsible for providing oversight relating to our financial statements and financial reporting process,
systems of internal accounting and financial controls, internal audit function, annual independent audit and the
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compliance and ethics programs established by management and the board. Each member of the Audit Committee
is independent in accordance with the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market. The board of directors of
Madison Bancorp has designated Richard Funke as an audit committee financial expert under the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee of Madison Bancorp met 3 times during the year
ended March 31, 2011.

The Compensation Committee consists of Frederick L. Berk, Mark J. Lax and Richard E. Funke. The
Compensation Committee is responsible for human resources policies, salaries and benefits, incentive compensation,
executive development and management succession planning. Each member of the Compensation Committee is
independent in accordance with the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market. The Compensation Committee of
Madison Bancorp met 1 times during the year ended March 31, 2011.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consists of Clare L. Glenn, Richard E. Funke and
David F. Wallace. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for identifying individuals
qualified to become board members and recommending a group of nominees for election as directors at each annual
meeting of shareholders, ensuring that the board and its committees have the benefit of qualified and experienced
independent directors, and developing a set of corporate governance policies and procedures. Each member of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, except for David F. Wallace, is independent in accordance with
the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of
Madison Bancorp met O times during the year ended March 31, 2011.

Each of Madison Bancorp’s committees listed above operates under a written charter, which governs its
composition, responsibilities and operations.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company’s executive officers and
directors, and persons who own more than 10% of any registered class of the Company’s equity securities, to file
reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Executive officers,
directors and greater than 10% shareholders are required by regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all
Section 16(a) reports they file. Based solely on the Company’s review of copies of the reports it has received and
written representations provided to it from the individuals required to file the reports, the Company believes that
each of its executive officers and directors has complied with applicable reporting requirements for transactions in
Madison Bancorp common stock during the year ended March 31, 2011.

Code of Ethics

In addition to having established committees of the board of directors, Madison Bancorp has also adopted
certain policies to govern the activities of both the Company and the Bank, including a code of business conduct and
ethics.

The code of business conduct and ethics, which applies to all employees and directors, addresses conflicts
of interest, the treatment of confidential information, general employee conduct and compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the code of business conduct and ethics is designed to deter wrongdoing
and to promote honest and ethical conduct, the avoidance of conflicts of interest, full and accurate disclosure and
compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. The code of business conduct and ethics is filed as
Exhibit 14 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Summary Compensation Table
The following information is furnished for our principal executive officer and the next two most highly

compensated executive officers whose total compensation for the year ended March 31, 2011 exceeded $100,000.
These individuals are referred to in this prospectus as “named executive officers.”
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All Other

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Compensation (1) Total
Michael P. Gavin........ccccccovoveeecveeeeeeeeeeeeeaenn, 2011 $ 150,000 $0 $9,240 $ 159,240
President and Chief Executive Officer 2010 150,000 0 6,027 156,027
David F. Wallace.........coooovvveuceveeieeeeeeceen, 2011 113,846 0 17,082 130,928
Executive Chairman 2010 115,000 2,212 14,403 131,615
Ronald E. Ballard ............occococvmeerieeeeeran, 2011 118,000 0 3,238 120,238
Executive Vice President, Commercial 2010 118,000 2,629 750 121,379
Lending

(1) Details of the amounts disclosed in the “All Other Compensation” column are provided in the table below:

Mr. Gavin Mr. Wallace Mr. Ballard
Employer match to Simple IRA ...........cocoooevennn... $4,348 $ 3,308 $3,238
Life insurance premiums..............c.ccovevevenreeeeenn.. 0 3,675 0
Medical and dental premiums ..............c...c.............. 0 8,065 0
Private use of Company car 4,892 2,034 0
TOtAl .o $9,240 $17,082 $ 3,238

Outstanding Equity Awards at End of Fiscal Year. None of the named executive officers had any
outstanding awards at the end of the 2011 fiscal year as the Company has not yet adopted any such equity
compensation plan.

Current Employment Agreements. In January of 2008, Madison Square Federal Savings Bank entered
into employment agreements with Messrs. Gavin, Wallace and Ballard, and in 2010 upon the completion of the
Bank’s mutual to stock conversion, each executive officer entered into a separate employment agreement with the
Company. Each of the agreements contains the same general terms, except for the level of base salary for each of
the executives. The agreements provide for a three-year term, subject to annual renewal by the board of directors for
an additional year beyond the then-current expiration date. The terms of the Bank agreements for Messrs. Gavin
and Ballard currently expire on January 14, 2013, and the Bank agreement for Mr. Wallace expires on January 14,
2012. The Company agreements currently expire on October 6, 2013 for Messrs. Gavin, Ballard and Wallace.
Under the agreements, the current base salaries for Messrs. Gavin, Wallace and Ballard are $150,000, $115,000 and
$118,000, respectively. We may increase the amount of the base salaries under the agreements from time to time.
We may also pay discretionary bonuses to each of the executives. In addition to cash compensation, the executives
are eligible to participate in all standard benefit programs we sponsor, as well as receive fringe benefits available to
senior management employees. We also provide Messrs. Gavin and Wallace with the use of an automobile.

Under the agreements, if we terminate an executive’s employment for “cause,” as the term is defined in the
agreement; the executive will not be entitled to receive any compensation for any period after his termination date.
If we terminate an executive’s employment without cause or if the executive terminates his employment following
an event that gives rise to “good reason,” the executive is entitled the salary he would have earned for the then
remaining term of the agreement plus an additional 12 months. In addition, the executives may continue to
participate in life insurance programs for the then remaining term of the agreement. The executives will also be
entitled to continued health coverage under COBRA at no expense to them. Under the agreements, events giving
rise to “good reason” generally include (i) the assignment of duties materially different from those normally
associated with the executive's position, (ii) a 10% or greater reduction in base salary, (iii) the failure to continue
employee benefit plans in which the executives participate, (iv) a relocation of by more than 30 miles, and (v) the
failure of the executives to be re-elected to the board of directors.

If we, or our successor, terminates an executive’s employment in connection with a change in control or if
an executive terminates employment for good reason in connection with a change in control, the executive will
receive a severance benefit equal to the difference between (1) 2.99 times the executive's average taxable income for
the five years preceding the change in control and (ii) any other payments made to the executive that are contingent
on the change in control.
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If an executive dies while the agreement is in effect, we will provide the executive’s estate with the
compensation due to the executive through the date of death. If we terminate an executive’s employment due to
disability, as such term is defined in the agreement, we will provide the executive with the compensation due
through his termination date less any disability payments made to the executive prior to termination.

During the period of each executive’s employment and for a period of twelve months following termination
of employment, each agreement restricts the executive with respect to soliciting employees and business
relationships from the Bank.

Employee Severance Compensation Plan. The Madison Square Federal Savings Bank Employee
Severance Plan provides benefits to eligible employees who terminate employment in connection with a change in
control. Employees will be eligible for severance benefits under the plan if they complete a minimum of one year of
service and do not enter into a separate employment or change in control agreement. Under the severance plan, if,
within twelve months after a change in control, an employee’s employment involuntarily terminates, or if an
employee voluntarily terminates employment without being offered continued employment in a comparable
position, the terminated employee, if he or she was an officer of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank, will receive
a severance payment equal to six weeks of base compensation plus two weeks of base compensation for each year of
service, up to a maximum of 52 weeks of base compensation. If the terminated employee was not an officer, he or
she would receive a severance payment equal to four weeks of base compensation plus one week of base
compensation for each year of service up to a maximum of 52 weeks of base compensation. Based solely on
compensation levels and years of service at March 31, 2011, and assuming that a change in control occurred on
March 31, 2011, and all eligible employees became entitled to severance payments, the aggregate payments due
under the severance plan would equal approximately $395,000.

Director Compensation

The following table provides the compensation received by individuals, who are not executive officers,
who served as directors of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank during the 2011 fiscal year. Employees of
Madison Square Federal Savings Bank do not receive compensation for service as a director. The table omits
information regarding compensation paid to Melody P. Kline, a director of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank,
for service as an executive officer of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank, but for whom compensation
information is not disclosed under “—Summary Compensation Table.” Ms. Kline did not receive any additional
compensation for service as a director.

Fees Earned or

Paid in Cash Total
Frederick L. Berk.........cccoeviiviieennee $ 28,800 $ 28,800
Richard E. Funke ....ccccoovveevevieeenn. 19,600 19,600
Clare L. Glenn ....cccoovvveveveriiieinnene 28,800 28,800
Mark J. LaX .oooeeeeiecieeeeeeeecvvreenen 28,800 28,800

Cash Retainer and Meeting Fees for Non-Employee Directors. The following table sets forth the
applicable retainers and fees that are paid to our non-employee directors who began service after March 2008 for
their service on the board of directors of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank as of March 31, 2011. Non-
employee directors who were serving as of March 2008 receive a monthly retainer of $2,400. Members of the
Company’s board of directors do not receive additional fees for service on the Company’s board.

Board of Directors of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank:

ANNMUAL FETAINET ..vvvieeieeeecreeieeccete ettt ses s $ 6,000
Additional fee for each board meeting attended..............c.cccoiviininniniinicnien, 600
Additional fee for each committee meeting attended:
If held day of board MEEHNG.......ceevieiriiiiiiiiii s 150
If held on day with no board Meeting ..........ccoeevvieiiriiriiinnciiiiie e, 250

Directors Emeritus and Advisory Directors
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The Company’s Bylaws allow the board of directors to appoint advisory directors, who may also serve as
directors emeriti. Any such individuals would have such authority and receive such compensation and
reimbursement as the Board determines. Advisory directors or directors emeriti will not have the authority to
participate by vote in the transaction of business. There currently are one director emeritus and two advisory
directors of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank. These individuals on occasion advise the Board of Directors
with respect to business development opportunities. The director emeritus and one advisory director receive
compensation of $1,000 per year, and the other advisory director is uncompensated.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

(a) and (b) Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

Persons and groups beneficially owning in excess of 5% of the Company’s common stock are required to
file certain reports with respect to such ownership pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
The following table sets forth as of March 31, 2011, certain information as to the common stock beneficially owned
by the only persons known to the Company to beneficially own more than 5% of the common stock, by each of the
Company’s directors, by the non-director executive officers of the Company and by all executive officers and
directors as a group.

Percent of Shares

Name and Address Amount and Nature of of Common Stock

of Beneficial Owner (1) Beneficial Ownership (2) Outstanding (3)

Persons Owning Greater Than 5%:

Madison Square Federal Savings Bank

Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust 42,568 7.00%

Directors:

Frederick L. Berk 5,000 *
.Richard E. Funke 10,000 (4) 1.64

Michael P. Gavin 25,296 (5) 4.16

Clare L. Glenn 200 *

Melody P. Kline 10,191 (6) 1.68

Mark J. Lax 200 *

David F. Wallace 7,281 (1) 1.20

Executive Officers Who Are Also Not

Directors:

Ronald E. Ballard 2,226 (8)

Paul A. Lovelace 0

Kay Webster 2,634 (9)

All executive officers and directors as

a group (10 persons) 63,028 --10.36

* Less than 1%.

(1) All persons listed have the Company’s address, 8615 Ridgely’s Choice Drive, Suite 111, Baltimore, Maryland
21236.

(2) In accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, a person is deemed to be the
beneficial owner, for purposes of this table, of any share of common stock if he or she has or shares voting or
investment power with respect to such common stock or has a right to acquire beneficial ownership at any time
within 60 days from March 31, 2011. As used herein, “voting power” is the powetr to vote or direct the voting
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of shares and “investment power” is the power to dispose or direct the disposition of shares. Unless otherwise
indicated, the beneficial owner has sole voting and investment power with respect to the listed shares. The
listed amounts do not include shares with respect to which director David F. Wallace and executive officer Kay
Webster share voting power by virtue of their position as trustees of the trust holding ESOP shares. ESOP
shares are held in a suspense account for future allocation among participants as the loan used to purchase the
shares is repaid. Shares held by the ESOP trust and allocated to the accounts of participants are voted in
accordance with the participants’ instructions and unallocated shares are voted in the same ratio as ESOP
participants direct the voting of allocated shares or, in the absence of such direction, in the ESOP trustees’ best
judgment. As of March 31, 2011, 2,838 shares had been allocated. The amounts include the following shares
held under the ESOP for the benefit of Mr. Gavin, 296 shares; Ms. Kline, 191 shares, Mr. Wallace, 231 shares;
Mr. Ballard, 226 shares; Mr. Lovelace, O shares; and Ms. Webster, 134 shares.

(3) Based on 608,116 shares outstanding at March 31, 2011.

(4) Includes 2,000 shares held in Mr. Funke’s wife’s IRA.

(5) Includes 296 ESOP shares.

(6) Includes 191 ESOP shares.

(7) Includes 50 shares held as custodian for a grandchild and 231 ESOP shares.

(8) Includes 1,000 shares held in Mr. Ballard’s wife’s IRA and 226 ESOP shares.

(9) Includes 134 ESOP shares.

(©) Changes in Control. Management of the Company knows of no arrangements, including any
pledge by any person of securities of the Company, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a
change in control of the registrant.

)] Equity Compensation Plans. Not applicable. The Company has not adopted any equity
compensation plans.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Loans and Extensions of Credit. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits loans by publicly
traded companies to its executive officers and directors. However, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act contains a specific
exemption from such prohibition for loans by banks to their executive officers and directors in compliance with
federal banking regulations. Federal regulations generally require that all loans or extensions of credit to executive
officers and directors of insured institutions must be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates
and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and must not involve
more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features, although federal regulations allow us
to make loans to executive officers and directors at reduced interest rates if the loan is made under a benefit program
generally available to all other employees that does not give preference to any executive officer or director over any
other employee.

In addition, loans made to a director or executive officer in an amount that, when aggregated with the
amount of all other loans to the person and his or her related interests, are in excess of the greater of $25,000 or 5%
of Madison Square Federal Savings Bank’s capital and surplus, up to a maximum of $500,000, must be approved in
advance by a majority of the disinterested members of the board of directors.

The outstanding balance of the only loan extended by Madison Square Federal Savings Bank to its
executive officers and directors and related parties was $ 69,737 at March 31, 2011, or approximately .51% of
shareholders’ equity. Such loan was made in the ordinary course of business, on substantially the same terms,
including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable loans with persons not related to
Madison Square Federal Savings Bank, and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present
other unfavorable features when made. The loan was performing according to its original terms at March 31, 2011.

Other Transactions. During the year ended March 31, 2011, there have been no transactions and there are
no currently proposed transactions in which we were or are to be a participant and the amount involved exceeds
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$120,000, and in which any of our executive officers and directors had or will have a direct or indirect material
interest.

Corporate Governance

Four of our seven directors are independent under the current listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
The three directors who are not independent under such standards are Michael P. Gavin, who serves as President,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the Bank, David F. Wallace, who serves as
Executive Chairman of the Company and the Bank, and Melody P. Kline, who serves as Executive Vice President,
Lending of the Bank.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Audit Fees. The following table sets forth the fees billed to the Company for the fiscal years ended March
31, 2011 and 2010 by Rowles & Company LLP:

2011 2010
Audit fees D e, $ 74,276 $ 39,000
Audit-related fees @ .........ooooooieerooeeeeeeeeee, 0 185
TAX TEES @ oo 0 0
AL ONET T8ES . ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e 0 0

(1) Audit fees consist of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company and the Bank
and the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The amount also includes fees related to the
review of financial statements included in the Company’s Prospectus included in its Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and the Annual Report on Form 10-K as
well as services normally provided by the independent auditor in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) Audit-related fees are for assurance and related services by the principal accountant that are related to
the performance of audits or reviews of the Company’s financial statements and are not reported in the
preceding Audit Fees category. The fees shown above were for due diligence services for potential
acquisitions, technical accounting and reporting, consulting and research audits.

(3) Tax services fees consist of fees for compliance tax services, including tax planning and advice and
preparation of tax returns.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent
Registered Public Accountants. The Audit Committee is responsible for appointing and reviewing the work of the
independent registered public accounting firm and setting the independent registered public accounting firm’s
compensation. In accordance with its charter, the Audit Committee approves, in advance, all audit and permissible
non-audit services to be performed by the independent registered public accounting firm. This approval process
ensures that the independent registered public accounting firm does not provide any non-audit services to the
Company that are prohibited by law or regulation. During the year ended, March 31, 2011, all services were
approved in advance by the Audit Committee in compliance with these procedures.

PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) List of Documents Filed as Part of this Report

1 Financial Statements. The following consolidated financial statements are incorporated by
reference from Item 8 hereof:

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of March 31, 2011 and 2010
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Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended March 31, 2011
and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

(b) Exhibits. The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and
is also the Exhibit Index.

No. Description

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Madison Bancorp, Inc. (1)

3.2 Bylaws of Madison Bancorp, Inc. (1)

4.0 Form of Common Stock Certificate of Madison Bancorp, Inc. (1)

10.1 +Employment Agreement between Madison Square Federal Savings Bank and Michael P. Gavin (1)

10.2 +Employment Agreement between Madison Square Federal Savings Bank and David F. Wallace (1)

10.3 +Employment Agreement between Madison Square Federal Savings Bank and Ronald E. Ballard (1)

10.4 +Employment Agreement between Madison Square Federal Savings Bank and Melody P. Kline (1)

10.5 +Employment Agreement between Madison Square Federal Savings Bank and Kay Webster (1)

10.6 + Madison Square Federal Savings Bank Employee Severance Compensation Plan (1)

10.7 + Madison Square Federal Savings Bank Deferred Compensation Plan (1)

10.8 + Employment Agreement between Madison Bancorp Inc. and each of Michael P. Gavin, David F.
Wallace, Ronald E. Ballard, Melody P. Kline and Kay Webster (1)

14.0 Code of Ethics

21.0 Subsidiaries of Registrant

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.0 Section 1350 Certifications ’

+ Management contract or compensatory agreement or arrangement.
€)) Incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
167455).
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ROWLES
@mpmy,

Certified Public Accountants

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Madison Bancorp, Inc.
Baltimore, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Madison Bancorp,
Inc. and Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended March 31,
2011. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is
not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as eva[uatlng the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Madison Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended March 31, 2011,
in conformity with acco